
 
 

 
 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
 

June 6, 2024 
1:30 p.m. 

 
Big Bend Community College 

ATEC Building/Masto A/B Room 
7662 Chanute St NE 

Moses Lake WA 98837 



 

Big Bend Community College 
District #18 
Governing Board:  

Chair Gary Chandler, Vice Chair Amy Parris, Anna Franz, 
Bethany Martinez, Juanita Richards,  

 

President Sara Tweedy 
 

2024 Meeting Schedule 
Thursday, February 1, 2024 at 1:30 p.m. 
Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 

Thursday, May 9, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 
Thursday, June 6, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 
Thursday, August 29, 2024, (Retreat) 

Thursday, October 10, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 
Thursday, December 12, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 

 
 

Board Goals (adopted October 12, 2023) 
 

1. Develop a clear method of monitoring Big Bend Community 
College’s Ends Statements including the identification of 
indicators which measure the performance of the institution 
relative to the Ends. 

  
2. Advance equity, diversity, and inclusion by reviewing policies 

to ensure support of operational equity, diversity, and 
inclusion programs. 

3. Establish an annual calendar of board study session topics to 
ensure professional development of Board members. 



 
 
  

BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 18 BOARD AGENDA  
Regular Board Meeting  

7662 Chanute Street NE, Moses Lake, Washington 98837  
Thursday, June 6, 2024, 1:30 p.m.  

In-Person  
  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call   
2. Mission Moments – Retirees, Employee Awards, 2024-25 ASB Officers 
3. Public comment   
4. Consent Agenda (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4)  

a. Meeting Minutes May 9, 2024 (action) 
b. Accreditation (Information) 
c. Assessment & Student Services (Information) 
d. Finance & Administration Report (Information)   
e. Human Resources Report (Information)  
f. Foundation Report (Information)  

5. Faculty Updates – Faculty Association President Dr. Tyler Wallace (E-1, Information)  
6. ASB Update – ASB President Ty Tait  
7. President’s Update  

a. Enrollment Report (E-1, Information)  
b. Tuition Collection Report (E-3, Information) 
c. Financial Aid Update (E-3, Information) 
d. BAS on Behavioral Health (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information)  
e. PACE Survey Executive Summary (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information)  
f. 2024 Graduation (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information)  

 Executive Session – President Tweedy/Trustees  
8. Sabbatical Presentation - Dr. Dennis Knepp (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Action)  
9. 2024-25 Operating Budget Presentation (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Action)  

10. 2023-24 Mission Fulfillment Report – President Tweedy (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Action)  
11. BP6101 Tuition & Fee Waivers – President Tweedy (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Action) 
12. Employee Recognition – President Tweedy (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Action) 
13. Board Chair Matrix – President Tweedy (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Action) 
14.  Board Goals - Trustees (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information/Action)  
15.  Board Retreat Planning – Trustees (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information/Action)  
16. Assessment of Board Activity (submitted in writing) – Trustees (E-2, Information)  
17. Big Bend in the Community/Board Meetings – President Tweedy (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 

Information/Action)  
18. Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting – Trustees (E-1, E-2, E-3. E-4 

Information/Action)  
19. Miscellaneous – Trustees, President Tweedy (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information/Action)  
20. Adjournment  

  
The Board may adjourn to an Executive Session to discuss items provided for in RCW 42.30.110 (1): 
(b) to consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase; (c) to consider 
the minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease; (d) to review negotiations on the 

performance of a publicly bid contract; (f) to receive and evaluate complaints or charges brought against a 
public officer or employee; (g) to evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or 

to review the performance of a public employee; (h) to evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for 
appointment to elective office; (i) to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to 

agency enforcement actions or litigation or potential litigation.  
Thursday, August 29, 2024 (Retreat)   

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 
Thursday, October 10, 2024 (Regular)  

If you are a person with a disability and require an accommodation while attending the meeting, please 
contact the President’s Office at 509.793-2001 (or TDD 509.793.2325) as soon as possible to allow 

sufficient time to make arrangements.  



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Date: 6.06.24 
ITEM #2: Mission Moments (information) 

BACKGROUND: 

Vision: 
Be our community's first choice to dream, learn, and 

succeed. 

Mission: 
Big Bend Community College 

Serve as a Bridge 
Stand as a Leader 

Support for Success 

Guiding Principles: 
Honor our Role as a Hispanic-Serving Institution 

Advocate for Equity, Inclusion, & Diversity 
Embrace our Workplace Norms 

Innovate Proactively 
Model Integrity 

Educate All 

Approved by the Board of Trustees October 28, 2021 

RECOMMENDATION:  
None. 

1



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Date: 6.06.24 
ITEM #3: Public Comment (information) 

BACKGROUND: 

Per Board Policy 1000, the chair shall announce at the beginning of each meeting that 
interested citizens or groups may make five-minute oral or written presentations to the 
board regarding any item on or off the agenda. If a written presentation is to be made, a 
notice of such written presentation must be submitted to the Secretary of the Board of 
Trustees at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
None. 

2



 
BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 
Date: 6.06.24 

 
ITEM #4:     CONSENT AGENDA (for action) 
 

a. Board Meeting Minutes  
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The minutes of the board meetings held on May 9, 2024, are included for 
approval. 
 
 
Prepared by the President’s Office. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
President Tweedy recommends the Board of Trustees approves the minutes. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the consent agenda as presented.” 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3



 

3378  

 

THE OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 
The Big Bend Community College Board of Trustees held a Regular Board meeting 
Thursday, May 9, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. in person. 

Present: Gary Chandler 
Anna Franz 
Bethany Martinez 
Amy Parris 
Juanita Richards 

2.  Mission Moments 

Board Chair Gary Chandler reported that the All-Washington Academic Team members are 
recognized as our state’s finest higher education students because they reflect the diversity of 
the state, maintain high standards of excellence and contribute positively to their respective 
communities.  This year, Big Bend is represented by Alejandra Cerna, Yuridia Jaurez, Adalee 
Bauer, and Leslie Estrada.  
  
Alejandra is a first-generation college student with incredible academic achievements. She 
shared, and I quote, “… this recognition honors not only my academic achievements but also 
underscores the significance of education within my family and community. It symbolizes 
overcoming barriers…” end of quote.  Yuridia is a running start student. She aspires to be an 
Architect and Interior Designer because quote, “I hope to go into this in order to create spaces 
for people to thrive in.” end of quote.  Adalee is a second-year student who will earn her AA 
this June and is an aspiring mechanical engineer. She shared that her desire to further her 
education is underscored by her gratitude.  
Leslie shared that she is a “a 30-year-old Mexican with big dreams, a wife and mother of 3 
boys ages 7, 4, and 2… I hope to meet my goals for a better future not only for myself but for 
my family.” After she graduates with her Accounting Technician degree, she wants to round 
out her education with a Bachelor’s in Applied Management.  Leslie attended the meeting and 
photos were taken. 

3. Public comment 

There was no public comment.  

4. Consent Agenda 

Motion 24-18 Trustee Anna Franz moved to approve the consent agenda. 
Trustee Amy Parris seconded, and the motion passed. 

New employees Ruth Stoddard, Director of Residence Halls and Life, and Larry Rimple, 
Director of JATP, were introduced. 

5. Faculty Updates  

Faculty Association President Dr. Tyler Wallace shared faculty news. Justin Henley, IST 
Faculty, has a student who has been awarded a summer Internship with Boeing in 



 

3379  

 

Auburn. Julian Miranda is the first BBCC student to be selected for this experience to 
get real world experience in Aerospace Manufacturing and Machining.  

Rhonda Kitchens, Faculty Librarian, hosted three April events for students and over 235 
students attended. These were the sameness in diversity, favorite poetry project, and 
poetry in the quad events. She looks forward to more exciting events for students and 
staff to share.  

Aaron Mahoney, Agriculture Faculty, took his students on a field trip to observe Bruce 
Swindler from Skone and Conners using a weed zapper and see it used in the field. 
Another class was able to test water chemicals and compounds in samples to see their 
impact and concentration on soils. Finally, students are spraying weeds with selective 
herbicides to learn how weed management is done. Also, the farm bot was used to help 
with this process. Aaron also wishes to invite the Board to the Indoor Plant Sale on 
Wednesday, May 22 from 10-2 to support the Ag program and club.  

Cade Levine AMT faculty shared about himself and his family. Students work on 
activities outside of the classroom such as the AMT Club. They worked on a plane for 
the aviation show and visited the Boeing Museum. They also restarted the 727 and 
invited other programs and classes including K-12 to connect with his program.  

Dr. Wallace thanked the board for the ACT Award he was received.  

6.  ASB Updates  

ASB President Ty Tait shared about ASB. The 2024-25 ASB Officers have been 
selected and he introduced the new ASB President Devry Lausch. President Tait 
announced about the Student Recognition Night tonight. He also reported that 
students have been gathering in the Viking Lounge and the Mental Health Fair has 
double the attendance of last year. There are upcoming events such as an HSI 
event with CEID and MEChA in response to student feedback and a campus 
carnival at the end of the month. Graduation gowns are available in the Viking 
Lounge and students are invited to decorate the caps in the space.  

7. President’s Update 

President Tweedy shared the names of new employees and positions that are open 
and reviewed the tuition collection report which is on track to meet the budget.  She 
also shared employee recruitment efforts.  Sara reviewed the redlined version of 
BP6101 Tuition and Fee Waivers. Revisions include updating inclusive language in 
the policy and allowing BEdA students to take 10 college credits with no fee before 
they qualify for financial aid so they can demonstrate they have “the ability to benefit” 
by passing two college-credit courses. There are other funding sources that are 
available to many students, the waiver is only for those students who do not have 
other resources. The BEdA program is the beginning of the pipeline-to-college 
courses. The student waiver is an optional waiver identified by the SBCTC.  

Dr. Tweedy discussed the Legislative priorities identified by Big Bend (Workforce 
Development, Dual Enrollment, COLAs/Compensation) and the SBCTC.  Dual credit 
enrollment is very important for members of community colleges service districts 



 

3380  

 

with large geographic areas. Students in rural communities do not have equitable 
access to community colleges.  

President Tweedy discussed the FASFA issues. Fewer students have completed 
FASFAs and that may impact enrollment negatively. Staff are focusing on students 
who are enrolled to ensure they receive their financial aid. Should be awarded 
annually beginning June 10. President Tweedy thanked Financial Aid Director Casey 
Fry and Dean Andre Guzman for their work focused on students. President Tweedy 
reviewed the list of graduation activities.    

8.  Exceptional Faculty Award Recommendations   

Motion 24-19 Trustee Anna Franz moved to approve for the EFA awards for 
Instructors Ryan Duvall ($2,000) and Kaja Englund ($850). Trustee 
Juanita Richards seconded and the motion passed. 

Board Chair Gary Chandler announced a 15-minute Executive Session at 2:30 p.m. to 
discuss items provided for in RCW 42.30.110 (1): (g) to evaluate the qualifications of an 
applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee. The 
session was extended by 10 minutes. The meeting reconvened at  2:55 p.m. No actions 
were taken during the executive session. 

9.  Board Goals 

The Board goals for the 2023-2024 academic year are as follows:  

1. Develop a clear method of monitoring Big Bend Community College’s Ends 
Statements including the identification of indicators which measure the performance 
of the institution relative to the Ends.  

2. Advance equity, diversity, and inclusion by reviewing policies to ensure support of 
operational equity, diversity, and inclusion programs. 

3. Establish an annual calendar of board study session topics to ensure professional 
development of Board members. 

The trustees discussed sub-committee membership. Chairs of committees will convene 
with their members and bring information to the board retreat.  

10. Assessment of Board Activity  

Trustees submitted their activities in writing which included tenure review activities. 

11.  Big Bend in the Community/Board Meetings 

Board Chair Gary Chandler met with college leaders to discuss holding meetings in the 
service district communities. The meetings will provide opportunities to interact with 
legislators and community members together and continue to grow partnerships. This 
event planning is in process.  



 

3381  

 

12.  Next Meeting 

The next meeting was confirmed for June 6, 2024. 

13. Graduation Activities  

Graduation activities were shared in the board packet.  Trustees signed up to attend 
specific activities to ensure representation. 

14. Miscellaneous 

Adjournment 3:14 p.m. 

 

            

Gary Chandler, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

       

Sara Thompson Tweedy, Secretary 

 



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

  Date: 6.06.24 
 

ITEM #4:    CONSENT AGENDA (for information) 
 
 b.  Accreditation  
 

The Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) requires colleges to go 
through a Substantive Change Process any time a college adds a new certificate or degree.  
Until recently, only degrees and certificates that are eligible for federal financial aid (Pell 
grants, etc.) needed to go through this process.  The Department of Education now requires 
Accreditation organizations to apply this lengthy process to all certificates and degrees.  
Colleges are not able to advertise programs until they have been approved by NWCCU. 

On May 24th, Big Bend submitted the following degree and certificates for NWCCU approval: 

• Computer Aided Manufacturing Associate of Applied Science 
• Additive Manufacturing Certificate of Accomplishment 
• Coordinate Metrology Certificate of Accomplishment 
• Machining Certificate of Accomplishment 
• Multi-Axis Machining Certificate of Accomplishment 
• Office Format Design Specialist Certificate of Accomplishment 
• Network Administration Specialist Certificate of Accomplishment 
• Data Center IT Specialist Certificate of Accomplishment 

 
 
Prepared by VP Bryce Humpherys and Dean Valerie Parton. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
None. 

 
4



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

  Date: 6.06.24 
 

ITEM #4:    CONSENT AGENDA (for information) 
 
 c.  Assessment 
 

The college is updating the forms and some processes for staff departments and faculty 
programs to assess their work and systematically make improvements that will support 
student success.  The updates are based on feedback from NWCCU evaluators during the 
college’s Mid-Cycle Accreditation visit in 2023 as well as guidance from NWCCU staff during 
this academic year. 

 

 
 
Prepared by VP Bryce Humpherys and Dean Valerie Parton. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
None. 

 
5



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Date: 6.06.24 

ITEM #4:    CONSENT AGENDA (for information) 

  e. Finance & Administration Update 

 

Ongoing Capital Projects: (updates in red) 
 
1600 Classroom Remodel/Quad Xeriscaping: Remodel a few small classrooms and 
change landscaping: Plans submitted to county for review and permit. Work planned for 
Summer 2024. 

1800 Storefronts (new exterior doors): Work is underway. 

1000 Upgrade Panel Board:  Replace breaker panels due to components exceeding their 
useful life.  Planned for Summer 2024. 

1400 and 1700 HVAC:  Replace HVAC systems in both buildings, scheduled to begin 
Summer 2024. 

1400 Office #2 remodel: Room 1436 to be converted to 3 individual offices. In design and 
approval phase. 

 

 

 
Prepared by VP Schoonmaker. 
RECOMMENDATION:  None. 

 
6



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Date: 6.06.24 

ITEM #4:     CONSENT AGENDA (for information) 

f. Human Resources and Labor

BACKGROUND: 

Jackson Wilks was promoted to the position of Executive Director of 
Finance/Controller. This is a full-time, admin/exempt position replacing Charlene 
Rios. Jackson started his new position on May 16, 2024. 

Mitch Herring accepted the position of Custodian 1. This is a full-time, non-
permanent classified staff position to cover the leave of absence of an existing 
employee. Mitch started his new position on May 16, 2024. 

Alexis Lopez accepted the position of Program Assistant for the Bonaudi Library. 
This is a full-time, classified staff position replacing Cassandra Torres. Alexis 
started her new position on June 3, 2024. 

Frederick Odell accepted the position of Custodian 1. This is a full-time, classified 
staff position to replacing Kelsey Wilfong. Frederick started his new position on 
June 3, 2024. 

Melissa Husebye accepted the position of Program Specialist 2 supporting the 
BAS Programs/Workforce Education. This is a new grant-funded classified staff 
position. Melissa started her new position on June 3, 2024. 

Aaron Linthicum accepted the position of Aviation Instructor. This is a full-time, 
tenure-track position. Aaron previously held this position in 2021. Aaron returned 
to BBCC on June 3, 2024. 

Christine Smith accepted the position of Program Specialist 2 supporting the 
Agriculture Program. This is a full-time, classified staff position replacing Jonathan 
Hartman. Christine will start her new position on June 17, 2024. 

Canon Gregoire accepted the position of Dual Enrollment Coordinator (Program 
Specialist 2). This is a full-time classified staff position replacing Edgar Montoya. 
Canon will start her new position on June 17, 2024. 

Recruitment & Selection: 

The following searches are currently in process: 

· Career Services & Workforce Education Coordinator
· Dean of Transfer & Allied Health  

7



· Dean of Workforce Education 
· English Instructor, Temporary 
· Fiscal Analyst 2 
· Manufacturing & Process Technology (MPT) Instructor, Tenure Track 
· Math Instructor, Tenure Track 
· Nursing Instructor, Tenure Track 
· Program Assistant – Financial Aid 

Retention: 

The Year-to-Date Turnover Rate through May 2024 is 5.900%. The breakdown of 
separation reasons includes 9-Other Job,1-Personal Reasons, 1-Relocation, and 
1-Involuntary. The goal for 2024 is to have a turnover rate less than 12%. 

 
 

 
8



 
 

BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Date: 6.06.24 

 

ITEM #4     CONSENT AGENDA (for information) 

g.  Foundation 

BACKGROUND: 

• Cellarbration! for Education is scheduled for March 15, 2025. We received our first $5,000 
sponsorship commitment from Moses Lake Industries. We will be applying for a Confluence 
grant at the beginning of June for next year. 

For the 2023-24 academic year the Foundation awarded $358,422 in scholarships, our 
projection is $450,000 for 2024-25. 

• We submitted a grant to the Lauzier Foundation on April 23, 2024 for the Greenhouse 
project. Aaron Mahoney did a fabulous job; he did the heavy lifting on writing the proposal. 
And on April 30 we submitted a grant for the construct of two team rooms in the current 
gym. 

• We are working on the Barbara & Ken Jacobs building dedication, (Math/Science) as soon 
as we know when the signage will be delivered and installed, we will set the date! 

• The BBCC Foundation will be hosting the Washington Association of Foundation Leaders 
bi-yearly meeting August 7-9, 2024.  We are expecting 50-70 people to be in attendance.  

• Met with a potential donor to sponsor a space in the WEC building. 
• Our auditors will be onsite to start our annual audit on June 4, 2024. 

 
See all of our upcoming webinars and register cost-free at https://alumlc.org/bbcc. Be sure to 
explore past events for free on-demand viewing. 

Upcoming Events 

 

Cleaning Up Your Mental Mess: 5 Simple, Scientifically Proven Steps 
to Reduce Anxiety, Stress, and Toxic Thinking 
Dr. Caroline Leaf, Bestselling Author and Cognitive Neuroscientist 
Tuesday, June 4th at 9:00 AM PDT 

 

“No” Problem: Strategies to Stop Saying Yes at Work When You Want 
to Say No 
Candace Doby, Author and Leadership Development Strategist 
Thursday, June 13th at 9:00 AM PDT 

 
9

https://alumlc.org/bbcc?fbclid=IwAR25GF6KHt5SKFwHnz7wvINBypekpslYkYAoxrdKieUsrrU07sFZvMDtsuo
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/35556
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/35556
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/36962
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/36962
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/35556
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/36962


 

Unscripted: How to Communicate and Connect using the Improv 
Approach 
Caitlin Drago, Author, Actor-turned-Certified Leadership Coach 
Tuesday, June 18th at 9:00 AM PDT 

 

3 Keys To Healthy Boundaries: Say No, Speak Up For Yourself, and 
Confidently Express What You Want 
Dr. Aziz Gazipura, Bestselling Author and Leading Expert on Confidence 
Thursday, July 11th at 9:00 AM PDT 

 

Get to the Point: Communicate More By Saying Less 
Diane DiResta, Author and Certified Speaking Professional 
Tuesday, July 16th at 9:00 AM PDT 

 

Emotion by Design: Creative Leadership Lessons From a Life at Nike 
Greg Hoffman, Bestselling Author and former CMO at Nike 
Tuesday, July 23rd at 9:00 AM PDT 

 
 

 
10

https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37078
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37078
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37207
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37207
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37340
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37460
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37078
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37207
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37340
https://alumlc.org/bbcc/37460


BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
ITEM #5: Faculty Updates (information) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Faculty Association President Tyler Wallace may report faculty activities.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 

 
11



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
ITEM #6: ASB Updates (information) 
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
ASB President Ty Tait will share an update about ASB activities. 
 

 
12



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Date: 6.06.24 

ITEM #7: President’s Update (information) 

BACKGROUND: 

Dr. Thompson Tweedy will provide updates. 

a. Tuition Collection Report (E-3, Information)

b. Financial Aid Update (E-3, Information)

c. BAS on Behavioral Health (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information)

d. PACE Survey Executive Summary (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information)

e. 2024 Graduation (E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4 Information)

RECOMMENDATION:  
None. 

 
13



As of May 28, 2024, spring headcount (2,392) was down 4.6% from this time last spring 
(2,508) due to high enrollment activity in Basic Education for Adults last spring. Total 
FTEs (1735.6) and state FTEs (1270.8) were up 13.2% and 16.7%, respectively, from 
last year. The last day to drop a class was May 23 and spring instruction ends on June 
14. 
Advising for summer 2024 and fall 2024 began on April 29 and priority enrollment for 
currently enrolled students began on May 20. New Student Enrollment sessions begin 
on June 6 and run regularly throughout the summer. Open enrollment began on May 28 
(for summer 2024) and begins August 28 (for fall 2024).  

The tuition amount budgeted for 2023-2024 is $3,500,000.  As of April 30, 2024, we 
have collected $3,975,358 or 113.6% of the budgeted amount.  As of April 30, 2023, we 
had collected $3,549,206 or 104.4%. (Tuition information is the same as the update at 
the last meeting due to calendar timing.) 

TUITION COLLECTION REPORT 
As of Apr 30, 2024 and Apr 30, 2023 

   2023-2024      2022-2023     
Annual Budget    $3,500,000   $3,400,000 

Collections as of Apr 30  $3,975,358  $3,549,206  

As a % of Annual Budget  113.6%  104.4% 

Left to Collect to Meet Budget Target  $ 0      $ 0 

Prepared by Registrar Starr Bernhardt and Asst Director of Business Services 
Jackson Wilks.  

 
14



Grand Rapids  

Community College 

Grand Rapids, Michigan 

   

  

  

Big Bend 

Community College 
Moses Lake, Washington 

PACE Executive Summary 

PACE Climate Survey for Community Colleges 
Lead Researchers 

Oscar R. Miranda Tapia &  

Jared King 

Conducted 

February & March 2024 

b 

pace.ncsu.edu  I  pace_survey@ncsu.edu  I  (919) 515-8567 

706 Hillsborough Street  I  Raleigh, NC 27603 

 
15



   

 

RESEARCH TEAM 
 

Phone 

(919)  515-8567 

Web 

pace.ncsu.edu   

    

     
   

   
   

Fax 

(919)  515-6305 

Email 

pace_survey@ncsu.edu 

CONTACT US 
 

North Carolina State University 

Belk Center for Community College 
Leadership and Research 
706 Hillsborough Street 
Raleigh, NC 27603 

 

  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audrey J. Jaeger, Ph.D. 
Executive Director 

Kaitlin S. Newhouse, Ph.D. 
Associate Director of 
Research and Evaluation 

Jared King 
Research Associate 

Oscar R. Miranda Tapia 
Research Associate 

Greyson A. B. Norcross 
Research Associate  

Emily R. VanZoest 
Research Associate 
 

Daniel R. West 
Research Associate 
 

Ece Yilmaz 
Research Associate 
 

 

   

Suggested Citation: Belk Center for Community College Leadership and Research, North Carolina State 
University. PACE Climate Survey for Community Colleges Executive Summary, by Miranda Tapia, O. R., & 
King, J. Raleigh, NC: 2024. 

 

 
16

mailto:pace_survey@ncsu.edu


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
During February and March 2024, the PACE Climate Survey for Community Colleges (PACE) 
was administered to 370 employees at Big Bend Community College (BBCC). Of those 370 
employees, 184 (49.7%) completed and returned the instrument for analysis. Respondents were 
also given the opportunity to complete a qualitative section asking what they find most favorable 
and least favorable about their institution, and two diversity, equity, and inclusion questions. Of 
the 184 BBCC employees who completed the PACE survey, 122 (66.3%) provided written 
comments. 
 

PACE Means 
The PACE Climate Survey at BBCC included 124 five-point Likert-type scale questions ranging 
from a low of “1” to a high of “5”. BBCC’s survey included the standard PACE 46 questions, 
Student Success Question Set, Racial Diversity Question Set, In-depth Institutional Structure 
Question Set, and a set of custom questions selected by BBCC. The PACE 46 questions are 
organized into four climate factors as follows: Institutional Structure, Student Focus, Supervisory 
Relationships, and Teamwork. At BBCC, the overall mean score of the PACE Survey was 3.695. 
The Teamwork climate factor had the highest mean score of 3.902, followed by Supervisory 
Relationships (3.863), Student Focus (3.807), and Institutional Structure (3.379). When 
disaggregated by the personnel classification demographic category of the PACE instrument, 
Staff rated the campus climate the highest with a mean score of 3.772, followed by 
Administrators (3.729) and Faculty (3.435).  
 
Of the 46 standard PACE questions, BBCC’s top 10 mean scores have been identified as 
potential points of pride at BBCC. Five pertain to the Supervisory Relationships climate factor, 
three pertain to the Student Focus climate factor, and two pertain to the Teamwork climate 
factor. 
 
• My supervisor/chair expresses confidence in my work, 4.377 (#2) 
• I feel my job is relevant to this institution’s mission, 4.359 (#8) 
• My supervisor/chair is open to the ideas, opinions, and beliefs of everyone, 4.133 (#9) 
• Student diversity is important at this institution, 4.034 (#18) 
• I have the opportunity to express my ideas to my supervisor/chair in appropriate forums, 

4.023 (#45) 
• I am given the opportunity to be creative in my work, 4.017 (#39) 
• There is a spirit of cooperation within my work team, 4.011 (#3) 
• My supervisor/chair seriously considers my ideas, 3.955 (#27) 
• My primary work team uses problem-solving techniques, 3.937 (#14) 
• Staff (non-instructional, non-administrator) meet the needs of students, 3.922 (#28) 

 

 
17



Of the 46 standard PACE questions, the bottom 10 mean scores have been identified as areas 
potentially in need of improvement at BBCC. Nine pertain to the Institutional Structure climate 
factor and one pertains to the Student Focus climate factor. 
 
• Information is shared within this institution, 3.101 (#10) 
• I am able to appropriately influence the direction of this institution, 3.129 (#15) 
• This institution is appropriately organized, 3.133 (#32) 
• Decisions are made at the appropriate level at this institution, 3.156 (#4) 
• Administrative processes are clearly defined, 3.171 (#44) 
• I have the opportunity for advancement within this institution, 3.181 (#38) 
• Administrators meet the needs of students, 3.223 (#23) 
• Open and ethical communication is practiced at this institution, 3.309 (#16) 
• This institution has been successful in positively motivating my performance,  

3.313 (#22) 
• Institutional teams use problem-solving techniques, 3.337 (#11) 

 
Qualitative Responses 
Responses to the two qualitative questions that asked about what respondents found most 
favorable and least favorable about the institution were coded broadly back to one of the four 
climate factors or an “Other” category for those comments that did not fit into a climate factor. 
The greatest number of favorable comments fell within the Teamwork climate factor and the 
greatest number of unfavorable comments fell within the Institutional Structure climate factor. 
Respondents also completed two additional qualitative questions about priorities and barriers to 
diversity, equity, and inclusion at the institution. Responses to these items are listed in 
alphabetical order and quoted exactly as written except in instances where the integrity of the 
report or and/or confidentiality are compromised.  

 

 
18



BBCC Comment Most Favorable and Least Favorable Response Rates 

  

The full PACE report includes the following items:  
• PACE Report 
• Demographics Report 
• Personnel Classification Report 
• Custom Report 
• Student Success Report 
• Racial Diversity Report 
• In-depth Institutional Structure Report 
• Qualitative Report 
• Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion Qualitative Report 
• Report Interpretation Instructions 
• Excel Data File with Codebook 
• Qualitative Comments Data File with 1 Demographic Item 
• PACE Survey Discussion Guide 

 

0 10 20 30 40 50

Institutional Structure

Student Focus

Supervisory Relationships

Teamwork

Other

Least Favorable

Most Favorable

 
19



2024 Graduation Events (Trustee Participation) 
 

Activity Trustees Attending 

Monday, June 10 
- HEP Graduation Ceremony  

o 6:00pm 
o Masto Conference Center 1870 

 

Juanita, Bethany, Amy, Gary 

Tuesday, June 11 
- BAS-AM Capstone Presentations 

o 5:30pm 
o WEC 3700 Building, Melcher 

Industry Training Rm 103 
 

Juanita, Bethany, Gary 

- TRiO SSS Graduation Celebration 
o 6:00pm 
o Masto Conference Center 1870 

 

Juanita, Bethany, Gary 

Wednesday, June 12 
- STEMposium 

o 12pm-3pm 
o Masto Conference Center 1870 

 

Juanita, Gary 

Thursday, June 13 
- BAS-AM Graduation Recognition 

o 9am 
o Masto Conference Center 1870 

 

Juanita, Anna , Gary 

Friday, June 14 
- Nursing Pinning Ceremony 

o ~11am 
o Wallenstien Theater 1100 

Building 
 

Bethany, Anna, Amy, Gary 

- BBCC Commencement 
o ~5:30pm 
o Lion’s Field 

 

Juanita, Bethany, Anna, Amy, Gary 

  
 

 
20



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #8: Sabbatical Presentation (for information) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
During the January 12, 2023, the Board approved a one-quarter sabbatical for 
Philosophy Instructor Dr. Dennis Knepp. He will present his sabbatical activities. 
 
Prepared by the President’s Office 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
None 

 
21



To: Big Bend Community College Board of Trustees, June 6th, 2024 
From: Dennis Knepp, PhD, Philosophy / Religious Studies Distinguished Instructor 
Re: Winter 2024 Sabbatical 
 
Completed Project: “Consider Two Audiences for ‘The Fixation of Belief’” submitted to the 
Transactions of the Charles S. Peirce Society. Still under review as of 5/27/2024. 

• My first submission to a blind peer-reviewed academic journal.  
• 7,408 words with 26 endnotes. (7,500 is the maximum for submissions.) 
• 28 references including many essays that I learned how to access using our library’s 

online resources. A lot has changed since I was a graduate student in the 1990s! Thank 
you to Word Services for printing many pdfs of essays from the Transactions. 

• Writing philosophy makes me better at teaching students to write philosophy. Reading 
philosophy makes me better at teaching students how to read philosophy. 

• Future Project: write a condensed version to submit to conferences. 
• Below is the 254 word Abstract and Keywords that was part of my submission. 

 

Consider Two Audiences for “The Fixation of Belief” 

ABSTRACT 
Most scholars argue that “The Fixation of Belief” fails in its purported central task of proving to 

us today that science is a better form of inquiry than the methods of tenacity, authority, and a 

priori reasoning, and there have been many creative proposals to fix it so that it does so. I 

propose instead to consider two audiences that I think Peirce realistically could have been 

addressing in his essay. A sympathetic audience reading Popular Science Monthly in 1877 

would not need to be convinced of the superiority of science but instead would learn from the 

other methods some very important and needed lessons in what science is not. A hostile 

audience of American Hegelians could recognize Peirce’s use of a dialectic but then would be 

surprised that their preferred third and final stage is superseded by a new fourth stage of 

scientific investigation. I think that Peirce is a victim of his own success. Looking at what else 

they published in Popular Science Monthly shows that they desperately needed lessons in what 

science is not, and American philosophy (and philosophical journals!) are thankfully no longer 

dominated by frustratingly obscure Hegelians. I hope my antiquarian thesis can be a corrective 

on the standard anachronistic reading so that we can better appreciate the success that is “The 

Fixation of Belief.” 

 

Keywords: C. S. Peirce, “The Fixation of Belief,” Popular Science Monthly, Herbert Spencer, 

American Hegelians, The Journal of Speculative Philosophy, William Torrey Harris, antiquarian, 

anachronistic 

 
22



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #9: 2024-25 Operating Budget (action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
President Tweedy and VP Linda Schoonmaker will present the draft 2024-25 operating 
budget.  
 
Prepared by VP Schoonmaker. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
President Tweedy requests that the Board approve the budget. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the 2024-25 Operating Budget as presented.” 
 

 
23



FY2024 FY2025 CHANGE

ALLOCATED STATE SUPPORTED FTE 1,701 1,701 0 (5)

State BASE Allocation:

District Enrollment Allocation Base  (DEAB) 5,949,995 6,338,689 388,694 (1)

Performance Funding 1,215,283 1,303,421 88,138 (2)

Minimum Operating Allocation (MOA) 2,850,000 2,850,000 0 (3)

SAFEHARBOR Earmarks and Legislative Provisos:

Compensation 2,096,270 2,366,207 269,937 (4)

Enrollments (Aerospace) 14,026 14,026 0 (5)

Discretionary 1,057,293 1,279,707 222,414 (6)

Targeted (Worker Retraining) 372,323 372,323 0 (7)

Ongoing Targeted 1,075,053 1,118,229 43,176 (8)

Nursing Educator 231,480 231,480 0 (9)

High Demand Faculty 210,296 210,296 0 (9)

GRAND TOTAL State Allocation 15,072,019 16,084,378 1,012,359

Tuition and Other Revenue:

Tuition 3,500,000 3,900,000 400,000 (10)

Carryover/Indirect Cost Recovery 2,944,853 2,616,997 -327,856 (11)

Running Start 3,100,000 3,100,000 0 (12)

Total Tuition and Recovery Revenue 9,544,853 9,616,997 72,144

Total Operating Budget Revenue 24,616,872$   25,701,375$   1,084,503$  

Big Bend Community College

Operating Budget Revenue 

Comparison of Fiscal Year 2024 to 2025

 
24



Big Bend Community College 

Notes to Operating Budget Revenue Statement 

Comparison of Fiscal Year 2024 to 2025 

 

(1) DEAB is calculated based on a three-year rolling average of actual enrollments and 

Priority/Weighted Enrollments. FY25 is based on enrollments from 2020-2021, 2021-22 and 

2022-23. Four categories of Student FTE receive an additional 30% weight for funding 

purposes. Basic Ed for Adults, STEM courses, courses addressing the “skills gap” as identified 

by the Workforce Training and Education Coordinating Board, and upper division applied 

baccalaureate courses. 

 

(2) Performance Funding is based on metrics of the Student Achievement Initiative. 

 

(3) MOA – each college is expected to receive 2.85 million with a portion coming from the 

Maintenance & Operation funding provided in the Capital Budget. 

 

(4) Faculty 5.834%, Staff 3.0% general wage increase, Employer Health Insurance 

rate increase, Employer Pension rate decrease, and Safe Harbor for Compensation 

Funding. 

 

(5) In FY 25, our FTEs have remained the same as FY24. These consist of Worker 

Retraining Base/Variable FTEs (66), Base Allocated State Supported FTEs (1633) and our 

portion of the Aerospace 1000 FTEs (2) funding. 

 

(6) College Affordability and Compensation/Fund Split support increased. 

 

(7) Worker Retraining Base/Variable – initial allocation of Worker Retraining Funds 

remained the same. 

 

(8) Disability Accommodations, Students of Color and various legislative provisos: 

equity SB 5194; Diversity SB 5227; Fin Aid outreach with Community Based 

Organizations. 

 

(9) Legislative proviso for Nursing Education and High Demand salaries. 

 

(10) Tuition revenue for 2023-24 was slightly higher than expected. Increased 2024-25 

estimate to equal prior year revenue. 

 

(11) This figure currently consists of fee income fund swap 30K, Indirect Cost Recovery 

70K, capital funding swap 218,600, BOT contingency funds requirement of 501,490 (2%) and 

125,373 (0.5%), leaving unfunded balance of 1,671,534 to be covered by Reserves. While 

the contingency funds are a one-time budget fix, and the use of reserves for operating needs 

is not financially sound, we have increased federal grant funding and our expenditures have 

been less than expected. Our enrollments are trending upwards and our outreach efforts 

have grown due to federal funding assistance. 

 

(12) Conservative forecast of contract income from the High Schools for Running Start 

students. Based on last three years of collection amounts. 

 
25



010 - $10,649,550  
INSTRUCTION

41%

040 - $2,121,426  
ACADEMIC 

ADMINISTRATION
8%

050 - $736,147  
LIBRARY

3%

060 - $3,347,802  
STUDENT 
SERVICES

13%

080 - $5,283,767  
ADMINISTRATION

21%

090 - $3,562,683  
MAINTENANCE & 

OPERATIONS
14%

EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM 2024-2025  
$25,701,375

010 - $10,649,550  INSTRUCTION

040 - $2,121,426  ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATION

050 - $736,147  LIBRARY

060 - $3,347,802  STUDENT SERVICES

080 - $5,283,767  ADMINISTRATION

090 - $3,562,683  MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

 
26



63%

22%

15%

SOURCE OF OPERATING FUNDS 2024-2025
$25,701,375

STATE - $16,084,378

RECOVERY/RUNNING
START - $5,716,997

TUITION - $3.900,000

61%
25%

14%

SOURCE OF OPERATING FUNDS 2023-2024      
$24,616,872

STATE - $15,072,019

RECOVERY/RUNNING
START - $6,044,853
TUITION - $3,500,000

 
27



22-23 23-24 24-25
REQUEST REQUEST REQUEST

010-INSTRUCTIONAL
SALARIES - 75.1% 6,763,866 7,500,150 7,994,648
BENEFITS - 22.2% 2,049,032 2,253,607 2,363,827
SUPPLIES - 1.3% 107,807 105,167 137,676
TRAVEL - 0.5% 53,973 54,623 54,623
EQUIPMENT - 0.9% 52,256 52,776 98,776

TOTAL 010- EXPENDITURES 9,026,934 9,966,323 10,649,550

#REF!
#REF!
#REF!
#REF!
#REF!

040-ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATION
SALARIES - 72.7% 1,407,598 1,429,193 1,542,778
BENEFITS - 24.3% 479,059 479,418 514,993
SUPPLIES - 2.0% 39,130 43,380 43,380
TRAVEL - 0.5% 13,500 11,500 11,500
EQUIPMENT - 0.4% 6,500 8,775 8,775

TOTAL 040-EXPENDITURES 1,945,787 1,972,266 2,121,426

75.1%

22.2%

1.3% 0.5% 0.9%

010-INSTRUCTIONAL

SALARIES
- 75.1%
BENEFITS
- 22.2%
SUPPLIES
- 1.3%

72.7%

24.3%

2.0%0.5%0.4%

040-ACADEMIC 
ADMINISTRATION

SALARIES -
72.7%
BENEFITS -
24.3%
SUPPLIES -
2.0%
TRAVEL -
0.5%
EQUIPMENT
- 0.4%

 
28



22-23 23-24 24-25
REQUEST REQUEST REQUEST

050-LIBRARY
SALARIES - 60.7% 408,582 417,689 446,941
BENEFITS - 24.7% 166,682 169,136 181,550
SUPPLIES - 11.2% 82,656 82,656 82,656
TRAVEL - 0.7% 5,000 5,000 5,000
EQUIPMENT - 2.7% 20,000 20,000 20,000

TOTAL 050-EXPENDITURES 682,920 694,481 736,147

060-STUDENT SERVICES
SALARIES - 59.5% 1,365,992 1,446,328 1,991,662
BENEFITS - 23.5% 516,420 515,331 788,346
SUPPLIES -  2.2% 612,114 643,643 74,855
TRAVEL - 1.1% 29,802 33,587 36,087
EQUIPMENT - 0.6% 15,000 19,296 19,296
GRANTS - 13.1% 451,030 435,549 437,556

TOTAL 060-EXPENDITURES 2,990,358 3,093,734 3,347,802

60.7%
24.7%

11.2%
0.7%2.9%

050-LIBRARY

SALARIES -
60.7%
BENEFITS -
24.7%
SUPPLIES -
11.2%

59.5%

17.3%

2.2%

1.0%

0.6%

13.1%

060-STUDENT 
SERVICES

SALARIES -
59.5%
BENEFITS -
23.5%
SUPPLIES -
2.2%
TRAVEL -
1.1%

 
29



22-23 23-24 24-25
REQUEST REQUEST REQUEST

080-INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
SALARIES - 50.7% 2,256,049 2,321,710 2,680,100
BENEFITS - 15.6% 825,878 874,915 824,725
SUPPLIES - 32.2% 1,338,500 1,917,550 1,699,887
TRAVEL - 1.2% 63,405 63,405 62,905
EQUIPMENT - 0.3% 16,150 16,150 16,150

TOTAL 080-ADMINISTRATION 4,499,982 5,193,730 5,283,767

090-MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS
SALARIES - 42.6% 1,321,278 1,399,425 1,424,456
BENEFITS - 18.0% 604,860 586,469 602,583
SUPPLIES - 38.6% 1,195,536 1,463,982 1,289,182
TRAVEL - 0.2% 7,275 7,275 7,275
EQUIPMENT - 0.6% 20,587 20,587 20,587

TOTAL 090-EXPENDITURES 3,149,536 3,477,738 3,344,083

50.7%

15.6%

32.2%

1.2%0.3%

080-INSTITUTIONAL 
SUPPORT

SALARIES -
50.7%
BENEFITS -
15.6%
SUPPLIES -
32.2%
TRAVEL -
1.2%
EQUIPMENT
- 0.3%

42.6%

18.0%

38.6%

0.2% 0.6%

090‐MAINTENANCE
& OPERATIONS

SALARIES ‐
42.6%

BENEFITS ‐
18.0%

SUPPLIES ‐
38.6%

TRAVEL ‐ 0.2%

EQUIPMENT ‐
0.6%

 
30



22-23 23-24 24-25
REQUEST REQUEST REQUEST

GRAND TOTALS SALARIES - 62.6% 13,523,365 14,514,495 16,080,585

ALL PROGRAMS BENEFITS - 20.5% 4,641,931 4,878,876 5,276,024

SUPPLIES - 13.8% 3,594,343 4,474,978 3,546,236

TRAVEL - 0.7% 172,955 175,390 177,390
EQUIPMENT - 0.7% 130,493 137,584 183,584
GRANTS - 1.7% 451,030 435,549 437,556

22,514,117 24,616,872 25,701,375

62.6%

20.5%

13.8%

0.7%

0.7% 1.7%

GRAND TOTALS ALL PROGRAMS 
STATE FUNDS

SALARIES - 62.6%
BENEFITS - 20.5%
SUPPLIES - 13.8%
TRAVEL - 0.7%
EQUIPMENT - 0.7%
GRANTS - 1.7%

 
31



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #10: Mission Fulfillment Report (information) 
   
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
President Thompson Tweedy and Vice Presidents Kim Garza, Bryce Humphreys, and 
Linda Schoonmaker will provide information around the Mission Fulfillment Report. 
 
Prepared by Vice Presidents Kim Garza, Bryce Humphreys, and Linda Schoonmaker 
and Dean of Institutional Research Valerie Parton.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 

 
32





2 
 

 

Contents 
Mission Fulfillment Summary 2024 .......................................................................................................... 3 

2024-25 Next Steps ................................................................................................................................... 3 

Mission Fulfillment Workbook .................................................................................................................. 5 

Mission Fulfillment Scorecard ................................................................................................................... 6 

Mission Fulfillment Scorecard Background .............................................................................................. 8 

Strategic Priorities ................................................................................................................................... 11 

Strategic Priority: Student Success; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned ........................... 11 

Strategic Priority: Employer of Choice; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned ...................... 19 

Strategic Priority: Forward Looking Infrastructure; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned ... 22 

Strategic Priority: Enrollment Growth & Diversification; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons 
Learned ................................................................................................................................................... 25 

Appendix A - Student Success Disaggregations ...................................................................................... 30 

Appendix B - State, Regional and National Comparison Data ................................................................ 35 

Appendix C - Major Activities, Tasks for Fulfilling Activities, Persons Responsible ................................ 41 

Acronyms ................................................................................................................................................ 53 

 

 

 

 

  



3 
 

Mission Fulfillment Summary 2024 
The Mission Fulfillment Report demonstrates the progress that was made in each of the strategic 
priorities to become our communities’ first choice to dream, learn, and succeed. 

During the May Shared Governance Meeting staff received the Mission Fulfillment reviewed progress 
being made in each of the strategic priorities. At the Shared Governance Council Retreat, actions and 
next steps will be cross-walked to the strategic plan. 

2024-25 Next Steps  
Student Success Employer of Choice 

• Develop and begin implementing updates 
to advising processes 

• Continue with Starfish improvements 
• Develop and implement student equity 

training 
• Fully implement curriculum management 

function in Clean Catalog 
• Pilot equity and assessment training for 

faculty 
• Refine English placement process 
• Review college placement practices and 

make Testing Center adjustments 
• Identify needs for dual language supports 

and pilot services 
• Establish a Transfer & Career Center 
• Prepare to launch BAS in behavioral 

health 
• Develop and implement improvements in 

manufacturing, agriculture, automotive, 
and welding programs 

• Explore rural nursing program expansion 
 

• Continue to enroll supervisor cohorts in 
the Managing with Heart & Mind series. 

• Complete work on the revisions to the 
existing leadership competencies.  These 
changes will inform supervisor 
expectations and accountability, the 
internal 360 feedback process and 
future leadership development 
offerings. 

• Improve employee participation in 
system-wide development such as the 
Cross-Institutional Faculty of Color 
Mentorship Program, the Faculty and 
Staff of Color Conference, and the Social 
Justice Leadership Institute.  

• Develop a comprehensive training plan 
with a focus on equity training, cultural 
competency, mental health, and 
personal development.  In-house 
training will include basic 
tools/information such as leave 
management, discipline and 
performance developments, screening 
committee training, LGBTQIA+/Safe 
Space training, and supervisor best 
practices.   

• Revise the evaluation process for 
supervisors to incorporate 360 feedback 
elements. 

• Relaunch the Leadership Development 
Committee.  

• Review the results of the 2024 PACE 
Climate Survey and engage the college 
community in developing interventions. 

• Develop a decision-making framework 
that encompasses various levels of 
decisions and how those decisions are 



4 
 

Student Success Employer of Choice 
made.  The framework must consider 
how change affects the campus 
community.    

• Collaborate with CEID to launch two (2) 
Employee Resource Groups (ERGs) - 
Faculty & Staff of Color and LGBTQIA+. 

• Develop a structured onboarding and 
orientation plan for all employees based 
on the 4 C’s model of onboarding – 
compliance, clarification, culture, and 
connection.   

 

Forward Looking Infrastructure Enrollment Growth and Diversification 
• Continue to increase usage of electronic 

access for each of our buildings 
• Complete the renovation project of 

several classrooms in building 1600 to 
enlarge class capacity  

• Complete the landscaping upgrades 
project for xeriscaping reducing our 
consumption of water for irrigation 

• Upgrade and repair various physical 
capital facility infrastructure elements 

• Continue the biennium-funded project of 
minor repairs to various HVAC, 
storefronts, entry doors, etc. 

• Continue to improve the internet 
capacity and reliability on campus 

• Continue work towards completion of 
conversion from desktops to laptops and 
docking stations 

• Implement replacement schedule of 
library checkout laptops for students and 
replacement schedule for employee 
laptops 

• Continue CyberSecurity training, 
preventive techniques, and education for 
employees and students 

• Maintain financial practices that continue 
our unqualified audits 

• Improve CiHS and CTE Dual Credit 
offerings and processes 

• Expand college offerings and staff 
support in Othello & Mattawa 

• Improve & expand collaboration with 
school districts 

• Complete gym updates for wrestling 
and wrestling teams compete 
successfully in NJCAA  

• Expand healthcare outreach efforts to 
build a larger student pipeline into 
healthcare programs 

• Further develop BEdA to college 
pathway through curricular changes 
and student supports 

• TRIO EOC and HEP grants achieve grant 
goals  

• Expand partnership with NCWTech 
Allliance 
 

 

  



5 
 

Mission Fulfillment Workbook  
Big Bend Community College began the new accreditation cycle in 2021.  The strategic plan guides the 
work of the college over the next five years. 

Vision:  
Be our community's first choice to dream, learn, and succeed.  

Mission:   
Serve as a Bridge  
Stand as a Leader  

Support for Success   

Guiding Principles:  
Honor our Role as a Hispanic-Serving Institution  

Advocate for Equity, Inclusion, & Diversity  
Embrace our Workplace Norms   

Innovate Proactively  
Model Integrity  

Educate All  

To implement and assess the college’s vision, mission, and guiding principles, BBCC has adopted four 
strategic priorities. 

1. Improving Student Success:  BBCC seeks to make improvements in student retention, 
persistence through college curriculum, and completion of college credentials while reducing 
performance gaps between student groups.  In addition, the college seeks to support students 
who leave BBCC to either continue their higher education journey or secure meaningful 
employment. 

2. Employer of Choice: BBCC seeks to be the “employer of choice” by creating a safe and dynamic 
culture where all employees are supported, engaged, and valued from recruitment to 
retirement as they serve students, the campus community, and our service district.  The 
decision to apply, accept a job offer, or remain at BBCC is a conscious one influenced by the 
mission, culture, and work environment of the college. 

3. Forward Looking Infrastructure: BBCC seeks to provide access to physical and organizational 
infrastructure that supports proactive and innovative student and employee success. 

4. Enrollment Growth and Diversification:  BBCC seeks to strategically expand student enrollment 
with an emphasis on addressing educational needs of students throughout the college’s large 
service district while ensuring the fiscal stability of the institution. 

Each priority is supported with Major Activities that are implemented through specific tasks that are 
assigned to different individuals, departments, and committees throughout the college. (See Appendix 
A). 

The college tracks its progress in meeting its strategic priorities (and thereby fulfilling its mission) 
through a scorecard that is updated yearly. 

 

 



6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mission Fulfillment Scorecard 
 

  



Mission Fulfillment Scorecard

STUDENT SUCCESS HSI Comparison 

Colleges
BBCC Baseline Trend

BBCC Indicator 

Score 2022-23
Target

Completion 2020-2023 2020-2023

3 year completion rate 38% 45% 49% 46%

Persistence 2022-23

Course Success Rate N/A 80% 79% 80%

15 college credits 1st year 76% 76% 78% 77%

45 college credit 1st year 31% 25% 29% 26%

Percent of Assigned Program Audits Completed 89% 100%

Retention Fall 2022 start Fall 2022 start

Fall to Winter Retention 85% 84% 85% 86%

Fall to Fall Retention 65% 62% 65% 64%

Post-Graduate Success Fall 2019 Start Fall 2019 Start

Transfer rate in 4th year - Transfer Students only 40% 42% 37% 43%

Employment rate in 4th year - WF Students only 75% 79% 73% 81%

EMPLOYER OF CHOICE BBCC Baseline Trend
BBCC Indicator 

Score 2023
Target

Turnover Rate 2023

FT Employee Turnover Rate 10.74% 15.03% <12%

People Development 

Pace Nat'l Small 2-

yr Col Comparison 

2024

BBCC Baseline 

PACE Survey 

2021

Trend 
BBCC Indicator 

Score 2024
Target

Supervisor provides timely feedback on work 3.86 3.53 3.49 3.79

Supervisor provides appropriate feedback on work 3.90 3.67 3.67 3.82

Supervisor clarifies work outcomes 3.83 3.57 3.57 3.78

The college holds everyone equally accountable

for performing their job duties N/A 2.91 2.73 3.12

Employee Experience 2024

Employees recommend BBCC as a great place to work N/A 3.78 3.58 3.87

FORWARD LOOKING INFRASTRUCTURE BBCC Baseline Trend
BBCC Indicator 

Score 2022-23
Target

Financial Status - Unqualified opinion - 0 Findings 100% 100% 100% 100%

Budget Status - Year End Remaining Budget 7.42% 12.40% 3%-10%

Facilities - Capital Projects Completed on Time 100% 100%

ENROLLMENT GROWTH & DIVERSIFICATION BBCC Baseline Trend
BBCC Indicator 

Score 2022-23
Target

Total FTE 1995 1649 2045

State Funded FTE 1511 1247 1549

Running Start Headcount 446 478 457

Needs significant improvements below baseline

Meets or Exceeds Goal - Achieving desired improvements 

Meets historical performance - less than 2.5% below baseline

7 



8 
 

 

Mission Fulfillment Scorecard Background 
Student Success 

Persistence students’ progress to degree, successfully passing classes and earning credits to degree.  
Course Success is defined as a 2.0 GP higher or a “P” (pass) in a class.  All students are included in this 
measure.  

15 and 45 credits in first year is based on a cohort model of first time, first year college students who 
started in the summer or fall and includes Dual Enrolled Students (Running Start and College in the High 
School).  

Percent of Assigned Program Audits completed.  Program Audits provide Instructional Programs with 
and in-depth review of their program with a three-year review of assessment student learning.  The goal 
of this is to have 100% programs completing their Program Audit in the assigned time.   

Retention first time, first year college students who started in the fall, and includes Dual Enrolled 
Students (Running Start and College in the High School) and are retained to the following term or year at 
BBCC. 

Completion first time, first year college and Running Start students who started in the summer or fall, 
and earned a BBCC formal credential within three years. 

Post-Graduate Success  

Transfer in fourth year, first time, first year college transfer intent and Running Start students who 
started in the summer or fall, and transfer within four years of starting. 

Employment rate in fourth year, first time, first year college workforce intent only students who started 
in the summer or fall, and are employed within four years of starting.  

HSI Comparison Colleges 
Beginning with this Mission Fulfillment Report, Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities 
requires colleges to disaggregate their student achievement data and compare it to peer institutions. 
BBCC is using Walla Walla Community College, Wenatchee Valley College, and Yakima Valley College as 
state peer institutions based on their status as Hispanic Serving Institution (HSI) and their rural settings. 

The State Board for Community and Technical Colleges provides the data for First-Time Entering Student 
Outcomes dashboard.  Included in our cohorts are First-Time Ever in College and Running Start First 
Time in College Students. 

Baseline 
The baseline is the three-year average prior to the 2020 accreditation cycle.  For three-year completion 
rates, it is the three years prior to the accreditation cycle.  This is for the average completion rate for 
students who started in 2015 and completed by spring 2018, students who started in 2016 and 
completed by spring 2019, and students who started in 2017 and completed by spring 2020. 

 
 



9 
 

Target Scores 
When possible, target scores were chosen based on the baseline score with a 2.5% increase.  There are 
some cases such as course success rates where maintaining the baseline score is the desired target. 

 

Employer of Choice 

Turnover Rate measures the rate at which our full-time employees are leaving BBCC in a given time 
period.  The formula is the number of separations during the time period / the average actual number of 
employees during the time period X 100. 

People Development a culture shift from boss to coach; focused on investing in, advocating for, and 
committed to personal professional development for all employees.   

Employee Experience an awareness of what people encounter and observe over the course of their 
employment with BBCC. 

Survey responses from the 2021 PACE Climate Survey were used to develop major activities and metrics 
for the Employer of Choice institutional priority.  Where possible, the comparison group is the average 
score of Small 2-year Comparison Colleges.  This comparison group is comprised of colleges with fall 
enrollment data of 500-1999 FTEs at associate’s degree granting institutions.   

Baseline  
The Turnover Rate is based on the average of the three years prior to the accreditation cycle which is 
2018, 2019, 2020. 

People Development uses specific question responses from the 2021 PACE Climate Survey results as the 
baseline.   

Employee Experience uses responses to a custom question from the 2021 PACE Climate Survey results 
as the baseline.   

Target Scores 
Employer Turnover Rate is based on the average of the 2016-2021 turnover rates.   

People Development is the mean value of the National Small Colleges Comparison group on the Pace 
Survey. 

Employee Experience is the baseline score with a 2.5% increase. 

 

Forward Looking Infrastructure 

Financial Status annual audited financial statements and management discussion and analysis with 
results of an ‘Unqualified opinion’ from the auditors performing the audit. 

Budget Status annual operating budget ending with 3% to less than 10% budget remaining unspent at 
the end of the period. 



10 
 

Facilities – Capital Projects Completed on time biennial capital projects completed within the capital 
budget period. 

Baseline  
Financial Status:  Unqualified opinion since we started preparing Financial Statements for audit FY14 
through FY20 

Budget Status:  3% to less than 10% budget remaining FY13 through FY20 

Facilities:  Capital Projects completed on time FY15-17 through FY19-21 

Target Scores  
Financial Status: Green (target) is an audit with an unqualified opinion with no audit findings; Yellow 
(approaching target) is a management letter, Red (needs improvement) is an audit finding. 

Budget Status:  Green (target) budget remaining is 3% - 10%; Yellow (approaching target) 0%-2.99% of 
budget remaining or 10% or higher; Red = <0% budget remaining 

Facilities:  Capital Projects Completed on time Green (target) projects completed within the capital 
budget biennium period; Yellow (approaching target) projects not expected to complete within the 
budgeted period-putting state funding at risk; Red (needs improvement) projects failed to complete 
within budgeted period and local funds required to complete. 

 

Enrollment Growth & Diversification 

Total FTE:  all credits earned by students in an academic year (total credits divided by 45). Forty-five (45) 
credits equals one full time student equivalent.   

State Funded FTE:  all credits earned by students in an academic year minus Dual Enrollment/CBIS 
funded credits divided by 45.  Forty-five (45) credits equals one full time student equivalent.   

Running Start Headcount is the number of students enrolled in Running start in an academic year. 

Baseline 
The baseline is the three-year average prior to the 2020 accreditation cycle which includes academic 
years 2017-18, 2018-19, and 2019-20. 

Target  
The target scores were chosen based on the baseline score with a 2.5% increase. 

  

 
  



11 
 

Strategic Priorities 
The following narrative describes the accomplishments, next steps, and lessons learned from the work 
completed last year to implement the strategic priorities.  The narrative gives context to the Scorecard. 

Strategic Priority: Student Success; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned 
Major Activities from the Strategic Plan 

Improve student retention & reduce retention equity gaps by refining and expanding college 
navigation services  

• Accomplishments:   

o Made multiple improvements to Starfish implementation including updating roles and 
access, close the loop training for Early Alert, reduced advising appointment reasons, 
preferred name sync with ctcLink, preferred phone number and email sync with ctcLink, 
updated video how to’s with BBCC branding, updated message templates for flags - 
coming from “Your BBCC Success Network” instead of instructors/flag raiser, text option 
for appointment reminders and flag notifications, updated info in Success Network, 
added “Raise Your Hand” options for students to request info/assistance, new flag and 
kudo available based off faculty feedback, updated attributes based off advisor 
feedback, and advisor training on using the “outcomes” feature. 

o WES filled new Benefits Navigator position 
o WES added additional services including gas cards, laptops and bags, diapers and baby 

items, and funding for books, software, and testing fees.  WES also launched a quarterly 
WES New Student Orientation.  WES partnered with DSHS Mobile Services to provide 
SNATP, TANF, Childcare, and Medical services to students and with Renew to provide 
mental health workshops. 

o WES was recognized by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities 
(NWCCU) with the Beacon award for the department’s success in supporting student 
retention and completion 

o BEdA was able to fund and fill 3 Educational Planner positions 
o Developed peer mentoring videos and began a peer mentoring pilot that connects 

students on academic probation with a peer who helps provide tools in areas that 
include time management, goal setting, stress management, creating good habits and 
routines, and how to get involved on campus. 

o TRiO SSS Classic Grant – At the end of fall quarter, 85.4% of students were in good 
standing, at the end of winter quarter, 86% were in good standing.  Fall to winter 
persistence was 81.75% and winter to spring persistence was 84.5% 

o TRIO STEM Grant – At the end of fall quarter, 78.51% of students were in good standing, 
at the end of winter quarter 86.75% were in good standing.  Fall to winter persistence 
was 83.14% and winter to spring persistence was 78.31% 

o Accommodation and Accessibility Services smoothly transitioned to using AIM software, 
through which students can request and access accommodations.  Thirty seven students 
with accommodations are using Glean, a notetaking software, and 70% (26/37) report 
that it is helpful and user-friendly. 



12 
 

o Writing Center smoothly transitioned to only using student tutors.  Two of the six tutors 
are in the BAS-AM program.   

o AskALibrarian had 7,119 chats and had a student rating of 3.73/4 
o Conducted DEI student focus groups in Feb 2024 and began analyzing results in Shared 

Governance Committee 
o Athletics Department launched the Viking Grill, providing inexpensive lunches Monday – 

Thursday 
o ASB advocated for, designed, and equipped the Viking Lounge, opening it on April 2, 

2024. 
o Installed multilingual signage and wayfinding across campus 
o BBT expanded the number of days and weeks when providing evening technology 

support hours 
o BBCC partnered with NCWTech Alliance to provide computer literacy classes to students 

in Othello and Mattawa. 
o Library created Technology @ Big Bend training site to help new students with basic 

technology issues. 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Continue making technical and usage improvements to Starfish as well as training of 
advisors  

o Grow the partnership with NCWTech Alliance to begin providing used laptops to 
students  

o Make necessary adjustments in Financial Aid department to mitigate the impacts of 
federal changes in the application process 

o Implement Good Jobs Challenge grant that will provide supports for students in 
Computer Science 

o Develop and implement student equity training 
o Identify and implement changes in response to student focus groups.  Improvement 

could be in areas of cultural awareness/events, social events/making connections, 
and/or communication about services/supports.  Implement associated listening & 
feedback sessions with students to gauge progress. 

Improve student retention & persistence while reducing equity gaps by strengthening advising 
services  

• Accomplishments:   

o Advising Workgroup provided advisor training at each quarterly In-service 
o Began developing a 2nd year completion support strategy 
o Began implementation of Clean Catalog software, including significant clean-up of the 

college catalog.  
o WES converted a position into an academic advisor for students receiving WES services 
o Updated content of some advising maps 
o Advising Workgroup began developing a vision, mission, goals, and assessment plan for 

advising. 



13 
 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Work with faculty and staff to develop and begin implementing updates and 
improvements to advising process 

o Refine and potentially pilot the 2nd year experience 
o Establish a Transfer & Career Center 
o Expand CSS course offerings 
o Restore Career Services 
o Fully implement curriculum management function in Clean Catalog 

Improve course success rates in courses of all modalities (face-to-face, hybrid, online) & gatekeeper & 
HELS (High Enrolled, Low Success) courses to meet the needs of day, evening, online, remote, place 
bound, on-campus, off-campus students while reducing equity gaps for different student groups  

• Accomplishments:   

o Launched Online and Hybrid Instruction trainings 
o One instructor completed ESCALA training 
o Held equity focused sessions in Winter and Spring In-services - Honoring Our Role as an 

HSI: Strategies for working with ELA students in Winter and Panel Discussion About 
Equitable Instructional Strategies in Spring 

o Instructional Improvement Workgroup offered 3 trainings at fall in-service and had 23 
faculty participants 

o Provided training on course success dashboard.  Data from the dashboard was used in 
some assessment reports and program audits. 
 Example from English:  In doing my assessment, I noticed that the average 

student success rates for white students at the college, in the last five years, is 
around 81.4%, whereas it was around 79.6% for the previous five years. Average 
student success rates for non-white students, in the last five years, is around 
77.2%, whereas, for the previous five years, it was around 76%. The increase in 
average student success rates for white students is around 1.8%, and for non-
white students is around 1.2%.   

o Instructional designer working with faculty to establish common Canvas course design in 
BEdA and manufacturing programs 

o Implemented a refined assessment process that includes providing assessment report 
feedback, program audit presentations in Instructional Council, and tracking of 
assessment plans. 

o Completed Postsecondary Data Partnership (PDP) dashboard development 

• Next Steps 2024-25  

o Complete common Canvas course design BEdA & manufacturing programs.  Explore 
application in other programs. 

o Develop sustainable equity training model for faculty to replace ESCALA training 
o Continue Online and Hybrid Instruction training 
o Train faculty on PDP to support assessment and program audit completion 



14 
 

Improve student persistence while reducing equity gaps by increasing students earning college level 
math & English credits  

• Accomplishments:   

o The math department redesigned pre-college math curriculum to be more pathways 
focused. In this process, the number of courses for many students was reduced by one, 
decreasing the number of courses a student may need to complete their college level 
math.  The department also piloted the updated curriculum. 

o The majority of students in the accelerated English (around 75%) accomplish ENGL& 101 
and continue to do well in their classes. Those who do not tend to be those who either 
do none of the course work, or those with specific learning barriers that necessitate 
more time to learn (taking both ENGL 099 and then ENGL & 101).  Online students seem 
to be as successful as on-campus students—but that requires close involvement via 
required conferences, for example.  Labor-based grading practices have helped make 
sure that all students are assessed objectively rather than subjectively, and students 
appreciate being involved in that assessment process. They feel heard and valued, and 
this is essential in helping them develop strong self-esteem as well as learn how to be 
independent, self-directed learners.  

o Dawnne Ernette, Developmental English Instructor, named the Washington Education 
Association Community and Technical College Educator of the Year  

o Developed math placement for Vanguard HS students 
o BEdA developed English and math placement procedures in partnership with the 

Developmental English and Math Departments 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Develop more videos to support the updated developmental math courses 
o Refine English placement process  
o Review college placement policies 

Improve student persistence & retention while reducing equity gaps by implementing different 
instructional strategies  

• Accomplishments:   

o Experimentation, training, and expansion of the use of ThingLink 
o Created two diversity courses – HIST&219 Native American History and ENGL 223 

Banned Books in Literature:  A Cultural Approach 
o Piloted a new Student Course Survey that may replace Student Course Evaluations 
o eLearning held 3 Open Canvas Lab days to support students and faculty, closed 97 

Canvas support tickets, and responded to 189 course merge requests. 
o STEM Center piloted using bilingual (English/Spanish) tutors 
o STEM Center introduced tutors directly within classes, established a bulletin board for 

campus clubs.  STEM Center usage increased 257% from the prior year! 
o Program audits completed in Bachelors Applied Science -Applied Management, Business 

Information Management, Criminal Justice, History/Political Science, Nursing, 



15 
 

Psychology, and Sociology/Anthropology.  The program audit in welding was not 
completed.  Program audits are underway in Agriculture, Aviation Maintenance 
Technology, Computer Science, ECE, English and Developmental English, Humanities, 
and Welding. 

o Program audits were key sources of information that resulted in a very successful Mid-
Cycle visit from NWCCU. 

o Tyler Wallace, Math Instructor received the 2024 Washington State Association of 
College Trustee Faculty Award. 

o Improvements to LIB 101 supported an increase of course success rates from 65% to 
79% 

o Early Childhood Education Program  
 Moved online course offerings and/or all face to face classes in the evenings to 

accommodate our working students, increased focus on content rather than 
delivery of perfect APA formatted papers (especially in classes with no ENG 101 
pre-req) 

 Began using diverse assignment formats to reduce burden of essay writing in 
English for our non-native English speakers and pre- Eng 101 students (videos, 
YellowDig posts, slide shows, infographics, etc.)  

 Added case studies and “real-life” scenarios and experiences for students. 

• Next Steps 2024-25:   

o Determine next steps for Student Survey tool 
o Conduct program audits in Aviation Commercial Pilot, Accounting/Business, Biology, 

Chemistry, CDL, Economics, Mathematics, and Physics 
o Continue making course and program improvements based on assessment and program 

audit data 
o Continue pilot of dual language tutoring in STEM Center.   
o Identify areas of need for dual language supports and potential implementation 

strategies such as learning communities. 

Improve student retention and persistence while reducing equity gaps by strengthening procedures 
and expand opportunities for awarding Credit for Prior Learning (CPL)   

• Accomplishments:   

o Researched elements of a proposed CPL policy and procedure 
o Expanded and systematized CPL practices in BEdA 

• Next Steps 2024-25: 

o Finalize and CPL implement policy and procedure for college level courses 

Improve student persistence & completion & enrollment while reducing equity gaps by launching 
a Bachelor of Applied Science in Applied Management (BAS-AM) degree   

• Accomplishments:   

o Secured final NWCCU approval for the BAS-AM degree. 



16 
 

o Spring 2023 graduated first cohort of students with a 77% (23/30) completion rate 
o Fall-to-fall retention of 2nd cohort was 87% (26/30). 
o In Fall 2023 launched two classes of students with 55 students in the program’s 3rd 

cohort. 
o The percentage of Hispanic students in cohort 3 is 52%, a 180% increase from the prior 

year. 
o Piloted Career Readiness Success Coaching, mock interviews, and a capstone course 
o Strong collaboration with the library in MGMT 460 Capstone course. 
o Implemented BAS-AM Instructor’s Guide to streamline and systematize program 

offerings and services. 
o Updated BAS-AM Handbook to include steps for earning credit for prior learning. 
o Added a diversity requirement to the BAS-AM program. 
o Implemented Excel supplemental instruction. 
o Piloted quarterly assigned student groups in program core courses. 

• Next Steps 2024-25:  

o Finalize post-grant sustainability plans for the BAS-AM including implementation of a 
program fee on all upper division program courses 

Increase transfer rates while reducing equity gaps  

• Accomplishments:   

o Continued collaboration with the Community College Research Initiatives (CCRI), 
including a round of focus groups addressing advising and transfer for STEM students. 

o Developing 2nd year completion model with a transfer element 
o Hosted transfer recruiters on campus 
o STEM Center collaborated with EWU and CWU for a soldering workshop and rocket 

building event. 
o Two teams working on the STEM grants (one with CWU and one with EWU) have been 

working on increasing transfer to those institutions for STEM programs.  
o TRiO SSS held a 2-day transfer event on September 6-8 which contained conference-like 

workshop sessions for students on transferring.  Hosted nine colleges/universities for a 
transfer fair (WSU Pullman & Tri-Cities, EWU, UW, CWU, WWU, Whitman College, 
Gonzaga, and GCU, BBCC BAS-AM).  We had 23 TRIO students and a couple of Gear Up 
students in attendance.  

• Next Steps 2024-25:   

o Continue collaborating with EWU and CWU 
o Refine and potentially pilot the 2nd year experience 
o Establish a Transfer & Career Center 

Improve student persistence, completion & post graduate success while reducing equity gaps through 
workforce program development and/or redesign   

• Accomplishments:   



17 
 

o Retired industrial electrical and uncrewed systems programs 
o Finalized subcontract with Sila and working with Sila and Group 14 on manufacturing 

program curriculum 
o Began partnership with Wenatchee Valley College (WVC) to jointly launch a BAS in 

Behavioral Health.  Thriving Together, a community-based organization, secured a 
Career Connected Washington grant to support BBCC and WVC in developing the BAS in 
Behavioral Health. 

o Began researching Electric Vehicle (EV) curriculum to make updates in Auto program 
o Made updates in Medical Assisting, BIM, Computer Science, Manufacturing programs 
o Agriculture program and Manufacturing programs partnered to create a mini farm bot 
o Agriculture program increased active-learning through multiple new assignment-based 

labs in AG courses by incorporating a plant growth lab, grow light banks, and sensor 
technologies (AGR 110 (Water Management), AGR 265 (Crop Production), and AGR 251 
(Pest Management).  Added more industry on-site visits/tours for Crop Production (AGR 
265), Water (AGR 110) and Pest Management (AGR 251) to improve industry 
networking and “real-world” experiences.  Added more computer-based learning labs 
for the Precision AG course (AGR 120).  Actively searched and applied for funding of 
Greenhouse Learning Center to improve student success and engagement. 

o Early Childhood Education Program updated articulation with EWU to include better 
science options for ECE transfer students, updated several existing courses to include 
new research about childhood trauma and brain development as well as improved 
instructional strategies and formatting, added two new courses: HUM220 Diversity in 
Education (as an additional option for students to complete their HUM requirement and 
diversity req.) and ECED 122 Science and Math for young children, and worked with 
Assoc Faculty to update content and instruction. 

• Next Steps 2024-25:   

o Prepare to launch BAS in behavioral health in fall 2025 
o Implement manufacturing partnership with Sila 
o Secure funding for a greenhouse to be used by the agriculture program 
o Explore rural nursing program opportunities 
o Develop EV curriculum in automotive program 
o Explore opportunities to relaunch ag mechanics program 

 

Student Success Lessons Learned  

• Intrusive advising and case management has a noticeable impact on student retention, 
persistence, and completion.  The addition of staff who can do this work would have a 
significant impact on student outcomes while also improving workload for multiple employees. 

• Tech literacy and technology support are critical to student success, especially in BEdA. 
• There is a need to teach navigation and college success strategies.  Mandatory CSS 100 

enrollment for new students could meet that need. 
• Program audits are an effective program improvement tool, provide great support for 

accreditation efforts, and the presentations in Instructional Council are very informative. 



18 
 

• The BAS-AM was more successful than anticipated in regards to enrollment, retention, and 
completion. 

• Student survey and focus group feedback has been consistent over the past few years 
requesting improvements around cultural awareness/events, social events/making connections, 
and communication about services/supports 

• College faculty and staff are doing wonderful work as they seek to understand student needs 
and make improvements to address those needs.  The very positive NWCCU Mid-Cycle visit is 
evidence of the great work. 

  



19 
 

Strategic Priority: Employer of Choice; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned 
BBCC seeks to be the “employer of choice” by creating a safe and dynamic culture where all employees 
are supported, engaged, and valued from recruitment to retirement as they serve students, the campus 
community, and our service district.  The decision to apply, accept a job offer, or remain at BBCC is a 
conscious one influenced by the mission, culture, and work environment of the college. 

Major Activities from the Strategic Plan 

People and Leader Development - Focus on job clarity and priorities, ongoing feedback and 
communication, opportunities to learn and grow, and accountability.   

• Accomplishments:   

o Renewed our connection with Nash Leadership Consulting by enrolling a small cohort of 
supervisors in the Managing with Heart & Mind series. 

o Renewed our connection with Cultures Connecting by enrolling college leaders in the 
Hiring a Diverse Workforce and Leading Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion Efforts workshops. 

o 91.83% of full-time faculty and staff completed the Microaggressions online training 
module.  91.79% of full-time faculty and staff completed the Accommodating Abilities 
online training module.   

o Twelve (12) employees completed Search Advocate Training and two (2) employees 
recertified their Search Advocate training.  The college has sixteen (16) trained Search 
Advocates available to serve on screening committees. 

o Three (3) employees participated in the 2023 Washington State DEI Conference. 
o 2023 Completion rates for classified staff performance evaluations improved by 25.85% 

over the 2022 completion rates. 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Continue to enroll supervisor cohorts in the Managing with Heart & Mind series. 
o Complete work on the revisions to the existing leadership competencies.  These changes 

will inform supervisor expectations and accountability, the internal 360 feedback 
process and future leadership development offerings. 

o Develop a tool to gather information on professional development completed outside 
the institution.  

o Improve employee participation in system-wide development such as the Cross-
Institutional Faculty of Color Mentorship Program, the Faculty and Staff of Color 
Conference, and the Social Justice Leadership Institute.  

o Develop a comprehensive training plan with a focus on equity training, cultural 
competency, mental health, and personal development.  In-house training will include 
basic tools/information such as leave management, discipline and performance 
developments, screening committee training, LGBTQIA+/Safe Space training, and 
supervisor best practices.   

o Revise the evaluation process for supervisors to incorporate 360 feedback elements. 
o Relaunch the Leadership Development Committee.  
o Transition to a new online training platform as Get Inclusive was purchased by Vector 

Solutions.   



20 
 

Climate and Community - Focus on continuous improvement to create a thriving community where 
employees are supported, developed, and able to realize their professional goals.    

• Accomplishments:   

o Hired a Director of Recruitment, Retention & Equity.   
o The Committee for Equity, Inclusion& Diversity (CEID) completed work on a Common 

Language Glossary.  The glossary includes intentional, thoughtfully researched 
terminology to help minimize misunderstanding and misrepresentation.   The glossary is 
on the college’s website.   

o The Human Resource Office implemented changes in the recruitment process to reduce 
implicit bias to include the redaction of Personally Identifiable Information (PII) from 
applications, cover letters, resumes, and transcripts and automatic scoring of minimum 
qualifications in NEOGOV. 

o Realized a reduction in the college’s turnover rate from 2021 (19.262%) to 2023 
(15.025%).  The 2024 year-to-date turnover rate is 4.455%.   

o The college partnered with the Belk Center for Community College Leadership and 
Research to conduct the PACE Climate Survey.   

o Fully deployed the onboarding portal for new employees, including student workers.  
Current employees also have access to the onboarding portal and information.  275 new 
employees, including students, have been onboarded since 7/1/23. 

o Launched an off-boarding portal to provide guidance to employees transitioning out of 
the college.   

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Review the results of the 2024 PACE Climate Survey and engage the college community 
in developing interventions. 

o Develop a decision-making framework that encompasses various levels of decisions and 
how those decisions are made.  The framework must consider how change affects the 
campus community.    

o Collaborate with CEID to launch two (2) Employee Resource Groups (ERGs) - Faculty & 
Staff of Color and LGBTQIA+. 

Position Alignment - Provide clarity to employees and supervisors regarding job duties and 
responsibilities. 

• Accomplishments:   

o Current admin/exempt and classified position descriptions are available on the BBCC 
Portal 

o The HR Office completed a salary review for admin/positions exempt from Civil Service.  
The review included a comparison with a benchmark group of nine colleges in the CTC 
system.  An internal salary comparison based on gender was also completed.     

o Extended bilingual premiums to cover employees fluent in Ukranian and/or Russian as 
well as bilingual, English/Spanish Tutors in the STEM Center.  



21 
 

o The 2023 time-to-fill rate for full-time positions was 61 days.  This is a 29.89% decrease 
from the 2022 time-to-fill rate of 87 days.   

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Develop DEI Competencies for all employees (staff, faculty, supervisors, and executive 
leadership). 

o Develop a structured onboarding and orientation plan for all employees based on the 4 
C’s model of onboarding – compliance, clarification, culture, and connection.   

o Develop detailed onboarding plans for supervisors to follow with their new employees. 
o As positions become vacant, review department structures with hiring managers and 

the Appointing Authority to determine if the current structure is meeting the needs of 
the college; if roles can be combined; and determine if roles are in-person, fully remote, 
or hybrid.    

Improve Internal Communication - Ensure communication is timely, intentional, informative, and 
relevant. 

• Accomplishments:   

o Around the Bend (AtB) continues to be the primary vehicle for communication to the 
campus community. 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Utilize employee feedback from the PACE Survey, exit interviews, and new employee 
surveys to develop additional methods for communicating with the campus community.   
 

Employee Experience Lessons Learned 

• While the college realized a reduction in the turnover rate from 2022 to 2023, the turnover rate 
continues to be higher than our goal of 12%  High turnover continues to take a toll on 
employees through increased workloads, a loss of institutional knowledge, and additional time 
spent training new employees. 

• Turnover patterns have shifted in the past few years.  Prior to 2018, retirement was listed as the 
primary reason for leaving the college.  Since that time, the most common reasons for leaving 
BBCC include compensation, relocation, career change, remote work, management, decision-
making, inclusion, and workload.   

• While the focus has been on recruitment and hiring, the college needs to transition to a focus on 
retention.  Utilizing employee feedback from the 2021 and 2024 PACE survey along with exit 
interview data, new employee feedback, and conducting listening and feedback sessions with 
employees will help determine retention priorities and implementation timelines for the next 
cycle.    

  



22 
 

Strategic Priority: Forward Looking Infrastructure; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons 
Learned 

Major Activities from the Strategic Plan 

Implement ctcLink Project 

• Accomplishments:   

o ctcLink users continue to attend training and Q&A sessions in their respective pillars to 
share knowledge  

o We are learning new refinements as a statewide System and adjusting our processes to 
accommodate new methods 

o We can work in our pillars and get information in and out successfully, building on our 
skillsets 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o  continue training and sharing expertise within the Community and Technical College 
(CTC) system, building on our own expertise 

Capital Projects/Facility Upgrades  

BBCC facilities are owned and maintained by the state.  The college is provided with capital funding to 
maintain and repair our state-owned facilities on a biennial basis. Most of the projects are completely 
funded by state capital funding and expended within the required biennial period.  The projects selected 
by the state are a result of the Facility Condition Survey (FCS) the SBCTC conducts every two years.  
Occasionally another deficiency of a more immediate nature will override the prior selection from the 
FCS.  Projects are selected approximately two years before funding is provided and priorities can change 
in that time frame. 

• Accomplishments:   

o Completed electronic access controls on at least one exterior door on all our buildings-
with all six north/south exterior doors on each of the Residence Hall buildings becoming 
electronic access controlled. 

o Completed Fire Panel and Boiler replacements. 
o Completed the 1400 remodel to create additional offices for meeting with students. 
o Completed various HVAC, storefront, switchgear and transformer, and other 

miscellaneous capital projects 
o Began work to upgrade and repair various capital facility infrastructure elements 
o In permitting stage at Grant County for renovating classrooms in building 1600 to 

enlarge classroom capacity and create xeriscaping across the central quad area and 
surrounding 1600. 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Continue to advocate for more major capital projects to be funded each biennium—
with the potential for our Health Sciences & Performing Arts Major Capital Project to 
begin sooner than a decade or more from now. 



23 
 

o Continue working towards the Clean Buildings Act standards from the state legislature 
as Department of Commerce refines the guidelines. 

o Complete the 1600 classroom remodeling and the xeriscape landscaping project. 

Technology Upgrades:   

• Accomplishments:   

o Increased internet capacity (bandwidth) coming into campus from 1gig to 3gig for 
everything except for the Residence Halls.   

o Completed the conversion from desktops to laptops and docking stations for employees 
across campus 

o Testing the viability of replacing both library checkout laptops and employee laptops on 
an annual 25% cycle (4-year replacement cycle) 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o  Continue work with expanding and improving WIFI for the Res Halls as vendors can 
accommodate  

o Continue Cybersecurity training, preventive techniques, and educating employees and 
students in continuing to exercise caution before clicking on links and attachments from 
unknown parties. 

Annual Budget Process 

• Accomplishments:   

o Finished the year within our budget without having to use reserves due to an increase in 
enrollments and a decrease in expenditures. 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Continue to monitor budgeted revenues and expenditures closely. Look for ways to 
maximize value in the proviso and earmark state funding. 

Financial Statement Audit:  Each year the college has its formal Financial Statements audited by the 
State Auditor’s Office (SAO), beginning in Fiscal Year 2014. In addition, the BBCC Foundation has been 
audited annually since 2013 by Angela Pratt, CPA, Petersen CPAs and Advisors, PLLC. 

• Accomplishments:   

o Successful completion of the Financial Statement Audit for FY2022-23 with an 
unqualified opinion.  

o Each year since formal Financial Statements have been produced, the audit has resulted 
in an unqualified opinion (clean audits) that the college is fairly representing in all 
material respects, its annual financial status. 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Begin preparations for the FY2023-24 Financial Statements due to SAO for audit by end 
of November/first of December 2024 timeframe. 



24 
 

o Continue financial practices that maintain unqualified financial audits. 
 

Forward Looking Infrastructure Lessons Learned 

• Be nimble with capital repair/replacement projects.  
• Expanded Wi-Fi capabilities and stronger bandwidth for our online and hybrid instructional 

offerings is necessary, and we continue to look for ways to provide students and staff with 
technology that meets. 

 

  



25 
 

Strategic Priority: Enrollment Growth & Diversification; Accomplishments, Next Steps, 
Lessons Learned 

Major Activities from the Strategic Plan 

Bolster total enrollment by determining post-COVID instruction and student support strategies that 
meet the needs of day, evening, online, remote, place bound, on-campus, off-campus students and 
improve & sustain virtual student support services accordingly   

• Accomplishments:   

o Made revisions and updates to online New Student Orientation 
o WES advisor began participating in and supporting New Student Enrollment sessions 
o Admissions/Registration collaborated with Advising to develop and implement a 

strategic communication plan to provide weekly informative and engaging text 
messaging about BBCC services and processes to new incoming students via email 
and/or text message from the time they sign-up for a New Student Enrollment session 
until after they attend that session. The campaign connects with students early and 
keep them engaged with BBCC. The effort is expanding to include returning students 
after enrolling in classes and continuing students.  How’s it going? There have been over 
3,268 contacts with an amazing 48.7% engagement rate and only a 1.3% opt out rate.  

o Simplified Admissions messaging: Through fall 2023, Admissions/Registration would 
email newly admitted students a letter with five (plus one optional) getting started 
steps, including 1) activating their ctcLink account (which is required for any student 
enrollment activity). After receiving many customer help calls/emails from students who 
were unable to complete some of their getting started steps, we noticed that many 
students had not set-up their account yet. Starting in winter 2024, we adapted our new 
student email/letter to have only two steps: 1) set-up their account, then 2) retrieve the 
rest of their getting started steps directly from within their ctcLink account Message 
Center. This simplifies the process for newly admitted students and ensures that they 
actually do set-up their ctcLink account and become familiar with navigating the system 
before enrolling in classes.  

o Financial Aid department has sent out messaging to students regarding FAFAS 
completion 

o Launched the We Are Vikings (WAV) event for new students in Fall 2023.  The WAV 
event is an engaging, fun, educational event that will empower all students and has the 
aim to foster a welcoming, inclusive environment that promotes connection and a 
positive transition into their academic journey.   

• Next Steps 2024-25: 

o Refine and improve messaging to strategies for new and continuing students 
o Implement WAV event with adjustments based on what was learned last year 

  



26 
 

Increase state-funded and dual enrollment by expanding off campus instructional options with a focus 
on Othello, Quincy, and Mattawa   

• Accomplishments:   

o Continued serving cohort of students in Mattawa 
o Expanded College in the High School (CiHS) offerings to Mattawa and Othello.  Worked 

with Quincy for implementation next year. 
o BEdA expanded instruction into Royal and Warden 
o Hired Southern Site Manager position to provide support and leadership for instruction 

in Othello and Mattawa 
o Rented offices for college staff in Mattawa & Othello 
o Established a full-time staff person in Othello as well as Mattawa 
o Started a “Limitless” grant partnership with Quincy school district to focus on improving 

transition of Quincy high school graduates into BBCC 

• Next Steps 2024-25:   

o Launch CiHS classes and improved CTE Dual Credit classes with Quincy High School 
o Improve CiHS and CTE Dual Credit offerings and process with Othello High School 
o Teach an ECE Spanish cohort in Othello & Mattawa  
o Offer CDL classes in Mattawa and/or Othello 
o Further establish roles of Southern site manager, full-time staff, and lead instructors in 

Mattawa and Othello 
o Complete DTA cohort in Mattawa 
o Improve collaboration with Quincy School District through the “Limitless” grant and dual 

enrollment partnership 

Expand state-funded enrollment with student programs that will attract state-funded students   

• Accomplishments:   

o Joined the National Junior College Athletic Association (NJCAA) for men’s and women’s 
wrestling starting in the 2024-25 season.  Successfully appealed a lifting of the post-
season competition ban for both sports. 

o Hired new head coaches for volleyball, men’s wrestling, women’s wrestling, men’s 
basketball, and softball teams 

o Made updates in the gym to support athletic teams in the facility, with a focus on 
wrestling 

o Implemented live streaming for baseball & softball 
o Developing a BAS in behavioral health 
o Updating manufacturing program 
o Used ARPA funding to complete minor remodel to nursing lab, make some updates with 

SIM equipment, and begin healthcare outreach activities 
o Partnered with Central Washington Area Health Education Center (CWAHEC) to host a 

scrubs camp promoting healthcare programs 
o Began developing nursing program marketing materials 



27 
 

• Next Steps 2024-25:   

o Build BAS in behavioral health 
o Implement updated manufacturing programming 
o Complete gym updates  
o Recruit full rosters of men’s and women’s wrestling teams and compete in NJCAA for 

first season 
o Recruit full rosters in all sports teams 
o Expand healthcare outreach efforts to build a larger student pipeline into nursing and 

medical assisting 

Expand total enrollment by strengthening pipelines into college   

• Accomplishments:   

o BEdA offices and classrooms moved to 3700 building. 
o BEdA faculty and staff working with faculty from workforce programs to identify courses 

and strategies for students to transition into college courses. 
o Developed a curricular pathway model from BEdA to college programs. 
o Began outlining BEdA to college admission, registration, financial aid, and advising 

processes to support transition into college programs. 
o Communications department used dual language advertising to promote programs and 

services for potential BEdA students. 
o Developed a dual enrollment model that would allow students to earn a postsecondary 

credential when graduate from high school and began promoting the model with area 
school districts. 

o Working with Moses Lake, Othello, Quincy, Soap Lake, and Wahluke school districts and 
on dual enrollment articulations. 

o Discussed dual enrollment articulations with CBTech, Moses Lake, Moses Lake Digital, 
Othello, Quincy, Soap Lake, Vanguard, and Wahluke High Schools.  Actively expanding 
agreements with CBTech, Moses Lake, Othello, and Wahluke High Schools. 

o Provided 22 scholarship information sessions for Big Bend Community College District 
high schools and awarded a total of $315,000 Foundation Scholarships. 

o Reached out to high schools to promote a “direct services to students” approach to 
outreach.   

o Hired five additional outreach staff using additional state and EOC grant funds.  All staff 
are assigned to each high school in the service district with regular visits now happening 
in CBTech, Digital Learning, Job Corps, Moses Lake, Othello, Quincy, Royal, Vanguard, 
Wahluke, and Warden High Schools. 

o Taught second cohort of post-pandemic JATP students. 
o Taught a second virtual ESL class to students at and Chubu University. 
o Actively recruiting additional international students. 
o Developed a high school outreach model where outreach staff:  

 Help students apply for financial aid, scholarships, and WES funds, 
 Help students apply to college, 
 Educate about dual enrollment options, 



28 
 

 Develop an educational plan that includes dual enrollment credits and maps a 
path to completion at BBCC, and 

 Help students navigate the BBCC intake process and connect to resources. 

• Next Steps 2024-25:   

o Expand presence of Outreach staff in smaller communities, especially Coulee Dam 
o Improve and implement dual enrollment policies and practices for both CiHS and CTE 

Dual Credit so they operate smoothly and in a sustainable fashion 
o Further develop BEdA to college transition with a focus on workforce programs, college 

advising & support model, and establishing a BEdA transcript 
o Recruit more international students 

 
Expand state-funded and dual enrollment by developing and implementing an Outreach & 
Communication Strategy and Create an Implementation Plan for recruiting students   

• Accomplishments:   

o Title V HEART, HEP, TRiO EOC, ARPA, Title V E3, and Limitless grants supported outreach 
efforts 

o Implemented new Open Doors contract with Quincy and Soap Lake school districts 
o HEP grant recruited a full cohort of students 
o BEdA held ELA classes in partnership with Genie and are exploring partnerships with 

other employers. 
o TRiO UB had 44 student participants in the Summer Academy 2023 and 18 students 

completed the Academy with a 4.0.  One TRiO UB student was selected as a national 
Dell Scholar for a $20,000 scholarship, one of 500 nationwide!  53% (30/57) junior and 
senior TRiO UB students enrolled as BBCC Running Start students. 

o Established an HSI seal and implemented bilingual marketing materials 
o Manufacturing program started a Mechatronics Club 
o The BBCC AG program met with 14 high school AG programs in our service district to 

help increase enrollment and provide collaborative opportunities, helped facilitate the 
Future Farmers of America (FFA) event hosted by BBCC, worked with the Mechatronics 
Club and manufacturing program to build an active-learning “mini-farmbot” to engage 
and draw in potential program candidates at outreach events. 

o Faculty in multiple departments and programs participated in outreach and recruitment 
events both on and off campus 

o Began legislative advocacy to support dual enrollment 

• Next Steps 2024-25 

o Work with SBCTC to develop a dual enrollment legislative package and advocate for it 
with state legislators 

o HEP grant meet all of its grant objectives 
o TRIO EOC grant meet all of its grant objectives  
o Expand program-specific marketing 

 



29 
 

Enrollment Growth & Diversification Lessons Learned  

• The college needs more robust staffing and program policies and procedures to expand dual 
enrollment offerings.  CiHS did not have the procedural infrastructure needed for large, rapid 
expansion. 

• Building and sustaining relationships is essential when working with partners and within the 
organization 

• BEdA to college transition efforts show promise.  Next steps need to focus on building policies 
and procedures more than program growth. 

• Joining the NJCAA and making facility improvements had a large positive impact on the 
recruitment of wrestlers. 

• Communication strategy with new students shows great promise. 
  



30 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Appendix A - Student Success Disaggregations 

 

 

  



Big Bend Community College - Student Success

Breakdown by Race/Ethnicity

BBCC 

Baseline BBCC Data Trend

Persistence 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

ALL Course Success Rates 80% 80% 80% 77% 78% 79%

AW Course Success Rates 82% 82% 84% 79% 80% 81%

HUG Course Success Rates 77% 77% 76% 75% 76% 77%

NR Course Success Rates 81% 81% 78% 77% 76% 82%

ALL 15 Credits 1st Year 76% 75% 77% 77% 74% 78%

A/W 15 Credits 1st Year 79% 77% 81% 81% 77% 83%

HUG 15 Credits 1st Year 71% 73% 73% 75% 70% 74%

N/R 15 Credits 1st Year 63% 80% 67% 63% 88% -

ALL 45 Credits 1st Year 25% 24% 26% 28% 29% 29%

AW 45 Credits 1st Year 31% 30% 32% 29% 30% 34%

HUG 45 Credits 1st Year 19% 19% 21% 28% 27% 24%

N/R 45 Credits 1st Year 21% 18% 17% 25% 39% -

Retention

ALL Fall to Winter Retention 86% 84% 87% 85% 83% 85%

AW Fall to Winter Retention 87% 83% 88% 85% 85% 86%

HUG Fall to Winter Retention 85% 84% 87% 86% 81% 83%

NR Fall to Winter Retention 77% 91% 67% 75% 88% N/A

ALL Fall to Fall Retention 63% 63% 64% 65% 63% 65%

AW Fall to Fall Retention 66% 62% 68% 66% 65% 64%

HUG Fall to Fall Retention 62% 64% 60% 67% 61% 65%

NR Fall to Fall Retention 56% 65% 50% 50% 50% N/A

Completion 2016-2019 2017-2020 2018-2021 2019-2022 2020-2023

ALL 3 Year Completion Rate 45% 42% 47% 45% 45% 49%

AW 3 Year Completion Rate 46% 42% 50% 47% 47% 48%

HUG 3 Year Completion Rate 43% 43% 42% 42% 44% 51%

NR 3 Year Completion Rate 45% 28% 56% 45% 33% 38%

Post-Grad Success 2015 start 2016 start 2017 start 2018 start 2019 start

ALL Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 42% 45% 41% 43% 44% 37%

AW Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 46% 51% 46% 50% 47% 43%

HUG Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 35% 36% 36% 32% 40% 33%

NR Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 44% - 38% - 55% N/A

ALL Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 79% 79% 79% 73% 79% 74%

AW Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 76% 77% 73% 64% 72% 63%

HUG Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 82% 80% 83% 85% 86% 86%

N/R Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only - - - 70% - -

KEY: AW is Asian or White; HUG is Historically Underserved Group (African American, Black, Hispanic, Native American, and Native 

Hawaiian/Pacific Islander); NR is Race/Ethnicity not reported.

31 



Big Bend Community College - Student Success

Breakdown by Age Groups

BBCC 

Baseline BBCC Data Trend

Persistence 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

ALL Course Success Rates 80% 80% 80% 77% 78% 79%

<20 Course Success Rates 80% 80% 80% 77% 79% 79%

20-24 Course Success Rates 77% 78% 77% 76% 77% 77%

>24 Course Success Rates 83% 83% 84% 80% 80% 79%

ALL 15 Credits 1st Year 76% 75% 77% 77% 74% 78%

<20 15 Credits 1st Year 80% 78% 82% 78% 76% 81%

20-24 15 Credits 1st Year 56% 63% 57% 76% 57% 60%

>24 15 Credits 1st Year 54% 55% 57% 61% 61% 71%

ALL 45 Credits 1st Year 25% 24% 26% 28% 29% 29%

<20 45 Credits 1st Year 28% 24% 30% 30% 30% 31%

20-24 45 Credits 1st Year 13% 19% 10% 24% 28% 27%

>24 45 Credits 1st Year 16% 22% 15% 13% 18% 12%

Retention

ALL Fall to Winter Retention 86% 84% 87% 85% 83% 85%

<20 Fall to Winter Retention 90% 87% 91% 87% 85% 86%

20-24 Fall to Winter Retention 72% 73% 76% 80% 74% 74%

>24 Fall to Winter Retention 65% 66% 70% 61% 77% 87%

ALL Fall to Fall Retention 63% 63% 64% 65% 63% 65%

<20 Fall to Fall Retention 68% 67% 68% 67% 67% 65%

20-24 Fall to Fall Retention 49% 48% 48% 58% 43% 54%

>24 Fall to Fall Retention 41% 45% 39% 48% 49% 70%

Completion 2016-2019 2017-2020 2018-2021 2019-2022 2020-2023

ALL 3 Year Completion Rate 45% 42% 47% 45% 45% 49%

<20 3 Year Completion Rate 47% 43% 49% 45% 46% 50%

20-24 3 Year Completion Rate 34% 28% 36% 38% 21% 33%

>24 3 Year Completion Rate 38% 47% 35% 52% 61% 45%

Post-Grad Success 2015 start 2016 start 2017 start 2018 start 2019 start

ALL Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 42% 45% 41% 43% 44% 37%

<20 Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 46% 51% 45% 47% 46% 39%

20-24 Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 13% 16% 10% 16% 16% 4%

>24 Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 24% 18% 21% 27% - -

ALL Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 79% 79% 79% 73% 79% 74%

<20 Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 80% 75% 83% 73% 85% 73%

20-24 Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 77% 82% 85% 70% 74% 78%

>24 Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 81% 84% 69% 79% 65% 72%

32 



Big Bend Community College - Student Success

BBCC 

Baseline BBCC Data Trend

Persistence 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

ALL (no RS) Course Success Rates 80% 80% 80% 77% 77% 78%

Rec'd N Aid Course Success Rates 78% 79% 78% 77% 78% 77%

Did Not Rec N Aid Course Success Rates 81% 81% 81% 78% 77% 78%

ALL (no RS) 15 Credits 1st Year 66% 64% 70% 66% 64% 73%

Rec'd N Aid 15 Credits 1st Year 66% 64% 66% 70% 64% 71%

Did Not Rec N Aid 15 Credits 1st Year 65% 64% 73% 60% 66% 75%

ALL (no RS) 45 Credits 1st Year 19% 17% 23% 20% 22% 22%

Rec'd N Aid 45 Credits 1st Year 16% 15% 17% 20% 20% 19%

Did Not Rec N Aid 45 Credits 1st Year 22% 19% 27% 21% 24% 26%

Retention

ALL Fall to Winter Retention 80% 79% 83% 79% 78% 82%

Rec'd N Aid Fall to Winter Retention 83% 81% 85% 83% 77% 83%

Did Not Rec N Aid Fall to Winter Retention 77% 77% 80% 73% 79% 80%

ALL (no RS) Fall to Fall Retention 58% 58% 59% 62% 57% 59%

Rec'd N Aid Fall to Fall Retention 57% 61% 56% 67% 59% 58%

Did Not Rec N Aid Fall to Fall Retention 56% 55% 62% 57% 55% 60%

Completion 2016-2019 2017-2020 2018-2021 2019-2022 2020-2023

ALL (no RS) 3 Year Completion Rate 38% 39% 36% 39% 38% 39%

Rec'd N Aid 3 Year Completion Rate 40% 41% 39% 41% 33% 40%

Did Not Rec N Aid 3 Year Completion Rate 38% 36% 33% 36% 43% 39%

Post-Grad Success 2015 start 2016 start 2017 start 2018 start 2019 start

ALL (no RS) Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 33% 30% 26% 31% 27% 25%

Rec'd N Aid Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 25% 24% 27% 29% 28% 15%

Did Not Rec N Aid Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 43% 38% 24% 35% 27% 34%

ALL Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 79% 77% 79% 72% 79% 74%

Rec'd N Aid Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 82% 78% 84% 75% 79% 79%

Did Not Rec N Aid Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 74% 76% 74% 69% 79% 69%

Breakdown by Receiving or Not Receiving Need-based Aid

The Breakdowns only shows Transfer or Workforce Students who were eligible for aid - they exclude Dual 

Enrollment Students

33 



Big Bend Community College - Student Success

Breakdown by Gender

BBCC 

Baseline BBCC Data Trend

Persistence 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

ALL Course Success Rates 80% 80% 80% 77% 78% 79%

Female Course Success Rates 81% 81% 81% 78% 79% 80%

Male Course Success Rates 78% 79% 78% 76% 77% 79%

ALL 15 Credits 1st Year 76% 75% 79% 77% 74% 78%

Female 15 Credits 1st Year 87% 91% 93% 78% 76% 74%

Male 15 Credits 1st Year 75% 73% 78% 76% 72% 83%

ALL 45 Credits 1st Year 26% 24% 27% 28% 29% 29%

Female 45 Credits 1st Year 23% 23% 23% 29% 28% 26%

Male 45 Credits 1st Year 26% 24% 31% 28% 30% 35%

Retention

ALL Fall to Winter Retention 86% 84% 87% 85% 83% 85%

Female Fall to Winter Retention 88% 86% 91% 88% 87%

Male Fall to Winter Retention 84% 82% 85% 84% 81% 87%

ALL Fall to Fall Retention 63% 63% 64% 65% 63% 65%

Female Fall to Fall Retention 81% 86% 91% 88% 87% 83%

Male Fall to Fall Retention 76% 82% 85% 84% 81% 87%

Completion 2016-2019 2017-2020 2018-2021 2019-2022 2020-2023

ALL 3 Year Completion Rate 45% 42% 47% 45% 45% 49%

Female 3 Year Completion Rate 48% 45% 50% 50% 50% 52%

Male 3 Year Completion Rate 40% 36% 42% 36% 40% 44%

Post-Grad Success 2015 start 2016 start 2017 start 2018 start 2019 start

ALL Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 42% 45% 41% 43% 44% 37%

Female Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 44% 45% 42% 46% 49% 48%

Male Trnsfr to 4 Yr by 4th yr, Trnsfr Stu only 39% 44% 38% 41% 35% 32%

ALL Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 79% 79% 79% 73% 79% 73%

Female Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 82% 77% 80% 75% 80% 80%

Male Emp Rate in 4th year - WF Stu only 76% 77% 79% 69% 78% 69%

34 



35 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Appendix B - State, Regional and National Comparison Data 

 

  



36 
 

Big Bend Student Success with State, Regional, and National Peer Institutions 

Big Bend selected state, regional, and national peer colleges based on criteria showing how similar they 
are to Big Bend.  Criteria was based on degree of urbanization*, fall enrollment, and percent of Hispanic 
enrollment, in line with BBCC’s Guiding Principle “Honor our Role as a Hispanic-Serving Institution”.  This 
information was obtained through the Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS).  The 
purpose of IPEDS is to collect institution-level data from providers of postsecondary education, primarily 
all Title IV-eligible universities, colleges, and technical and vocational education providers in the United 
States and other jurisdictions.  IPEDS data shown are based on degree/certificate seeking students. 

The Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) accredits each of the state and 
regional institutions comparison colleges that BBCC selected.  NWCCU standards require colleges to 
measure student achievement with a focus on eliminating equity gaps and to compare college 
performance against regional and national peer institutions.  Peer institutions are similar in degree of 
urbanization, percent Hispanic, and enrollment and are accredited by national accrediting bodies. 

Comparison Institutions Selected based on IPEDS Data Feedback Report 2023 with degree of 
urbanization, student headcount, and percent Hispanic. 

Fall 2022  
Campus 
Setting  

Student 
Headcount 

Percent 
Hispanic 

Big Bend Community College WA Town: Remote 1736 44 

     
Statewide Comparison Schools     
Walla Walla Community College WA City: Small 2662 27 

Wenatchee Valley College WA City: Small 2529 42 

Yakima Valley College WA City: Small 3279 59 

     
Regional Comparison Schools     
College of Eastern Idaho ID City: Small 2333 15 

Great Basin, Elko NV Town: Remote 3197 25 

Treasure Valley OR Town: Distant 1329 27 

     
National Comparison Schools     
Clovis Community College NM Town: Remote 2303 46 

Garden City Community College KS Town: Remote 1914 51 

Lake Tahoe Community College CA Rural Fringe 2519 31 
 

*Locale codes identify the geographic status of a school on an urban continuum ranging from “large city” to “rural.” They are 
based on a school’s physical address. The urban-centric locale codes introduced in this file are assigned through a methodology 
developed by the U.S. Census Bureau’s Population Division in 2005. The urban-centric locale codes apply current geographic 
concepts to the original NCES locale codes used on IPEDS files through 2004. 

City: Small: Territory inside an urbanized area and inside a principal city with population less than 100,000. 

Town: Distant: Territory inside an urban cluster that is more than 10 miles and less than or equal to 35 miles from an urbanized 
area. 

Town: Remote: Territory inside an urban cluster that is more than 35 miles of an urbanized area. 



37 
 

Rural: Fringe: Census-defined rural territory that is less than or equal to 5 miles from an urbanized area, as well as rural territory 
that is less than or equal to 2.5 miles from an urban cluster. 

Rural: Fringe: Census-defined rural territory that is less than or equal to 5 miles from an urbanized area, as well as rural territory 
that is less than or equal to 2.5 miles from an urban cluster. 

 

Fall 2022 Race/Ethnicity 

 

The chart above shows that BBCC has comparable race/ethnicities and gender make-up of our peer 
institutions allowing the college to gauge student achievement against similar institutions.  

 

  



38 
 

Student Aid  

 

Grants are categorized by their funding source into federal, state and local, and institutional grants.  

Federal grants primary categories include Pell, Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund, Supplemental 
Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG), Basic Food Employment and Training (BFET), and WorkFirst.  

Pell grants are federal grants and the primary source of financial aid for most students. 

State and local grants primary categories include Washington College Grant, Washington State 
Opportunity Grant, College Bound Scholarship, Tuition Waiver, Opportunity Grant, Early Achievers 
Grant, and Worker Retraining Grant. 

Institutional grants primary categories include: Foundation scholarships, outside scholarships, 2.5/3.5% 
Waivers, Athletic waivers and scholarships.  

This provides the college with information on potential opportunities for improvement.  BBCC has a 
much lower higher percentage of students who receive State/Local and Institutional grants.  Eight 
percent of BBCC students receive loans.  BBCC Financial Aid doesn’t package loans into a student’s 
financial aid package.  If a student wants a loan they have to apply for it. 

  



39 

Graduation and Transfer Rates 

Graduation (degrees and certificates) and Transfer Rates for Full-
time, first-time students, IPEDS Report 2023, BBCC 2016 Cohort 

Big Bend State Regional National 
Graduation 40% 36% 39% 39% 
Transfer 13% 11% 12% 12% 
Total 53% 47% 51% 51% 

IPEDS Graduation (degrees and certificates) and Transfer Rates are the standard measures of student 
achievement nationally.  Graduation rates include students who graduated and students who graduated 
and transferred.  Transfer rates include students who transferred without completing a degree or 
certificate.   

The IPEDS Report in 2023 had BBCC’s graduation rate at 40% for full-time, first-time students within 
150% of time to degree.  The national and regional comparisons colleges were at 39%.  However, when 
you add the transfers to the graduation rate, BBCC was at 53%, two percent higher than the national 
and regional comparison colleges and six percent higher than State Hispanic-Serving Comparison 
colleges. 



40 

Graduations/Completion Rates by Race/Ethnicity 

BBCC’s Hispanic Graduation/Completion rate is higher than state Hispanic-serving comparison colleges 
41% vs 36%, however; regional and national comparison colleges were at 42% and 44 % respectively.  
This provides the college with information on potential opportunities for growth. 

The very small populations of American Indian/Alaska Native, Asian, Black or African American, and 
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander students at BBCC cause the rates to fluctuate with a small number of 
completions.   



41 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C - Major Activities, Tasks for Fulfilling Activities, Persons Responsible 
 

 



42 
 

Improving Student Success 
Major Activities  Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Implement ctcLink for 
Admissions/Registration, 
Financial Aid, & Instructional 
Support 

Implement ctcLink for Admissions/Registration, 
Financial Aid, & Instructional Support 

Admissions/Registration, Financial 
Aid, & Instructional Support 

Completed 

    

Improve student retention & 
reduce retention equity gaps by 
refining and expanding college 
navigation services 

Refine Starfish Early Alerts & Referrals, develop and 
implement Success Plans, integrate Starfish use into 
case management work of departments, provide 
direct services to students, ongoing training of 
employees, Starfish technical integration 
with ctcLink  

Starfish Coordinator and Starfish 
implementation/scale up group, WES, 
TRiO SSS, Library, A&AS, BEdA 

In Progress 

Provide TRIO-like support services for students and 
address workload questions  

In Progress 

Provide a resource guide to new students that also 
illustrates how resources, including 
financial supports, will help students succeed. 

A&AS, BEdA, WES, TRIO SSS 
Completed 

Develop specific equity informed training foci, 
identify training opportunities (internal, external), 
link training to department performance & student 
success metrics 

Title V Grant Team, IR 

In Progress 

Provide students with trainings about how to utilize 
technology used in their classes  eLearning, Library In Progress 

Provide technology support, online and with hours 
outside of 8:00-5:00  BBT, Library In Progress 

    

Improve student retention & 
persistence while reducing 
equity gaps by 
strengthening advising services  

Continue improving annual course planning 
schedules   

Deans, schedulers, faculty Advising 
Workgroup 

In Progress 

Improve advising services year-
round with ctcLink tools, the website, 
and other tools  Advising Workgroup 

In Progress 

Review and update existing advising maps  In Progress 



43 
 

Improving Student Success 
Major Activities  Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Provide training and support for academic advisors  In Progress 
Refine advising practices for second year students, 
completion, transfer, and career advising  

Planning 

Develop transition to campus and college advising 
for dual enrollment students  

Advising Workgroup, BEdA, 
Workforce Ed. Coordinator 

Planning 

    

Improve completion rates in 
courses of all modalities (face-
to-face, hybrid, online) & 
gatekeeper & HELS (High 
Enrolled, Low Success) courses 
to meet the needs of day, 
evening, online, remote, place 
bound, on-campus, off-campus 
students while reducing equity 
gaps for different student 
groups  

Professional development around online instruction 
(e.g. use of technology, engaging students, 
communication with students) combined with 
implementation support for faculty and training 
support for students  

Instructional Improvement 
Workgroup, Title V Grant Team 

In Progress 

Implement large scale ESCALA training for faculty  Title V Grant Team In Progress 

Implement large scale instructional design training 
for faculty  Instructional Designer In Progress 

Develop specific equity informed training foci, 
identify training opportunities (internal, external), 
link training to course success & student success 
metrics 

Title V Grant Team, IR 

In Progress 

Implement instructional changes based on 
assessment of student learning results Deans & Faculty 

In Progress 

    
Improve student persistence 
while reducing equity gaps by 
increasing students earning 
college level math & English 
credits with accelerated Math 
& English courses  

Refine accelerated English & math instruction  English & Math Departments 
In Progress 

Review and update math & English placement 
practices  

English & Math Departments, Testing 
Center Coordinator 

Completed 

    



44 
 

Improving Student Success 
Major Activities  Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Improve student persistence & 
retention while reducing equity 
gaps by implementing different 
instructional strategies 

Explore & expand accelerated, flipped, 
modularized, competency-based learning options - 
Identify courses to develop or redesign, connect 
faculty with professional development 
opportunities activities, redesign courses  

Instructional Designer, BAS faculty, 
Title V Grant Team, Instructional 
Improvement Workgroup 

Planning 

Increase options for diversity, equity, and inclusion 
course offerings  Instructional Council In Progress 

Explore undergraduate research, service learning, 
subject matter immersion, internship, work-based 
learning and other active learning opportunities.  
Secure grant funding to support pilots, engage 
interested faculty, identify needed staff to support  

Dean of Arts & Sciences, Math & 
Science Division, Social Science 
Division, Career Services, Workforce 
Education Coordinator, Workforce 
Faculty, Library, A&AS 

Planning 

Align academic support services with instruction  STEM Center, Writing Center, BAS 
Program, BEdA, Library, eLearning 

In Progress 

Implement instructional changes based on 
assessment of student learning and program audit 
results 

Deans & Faculty 
In Progress 

    
Improve student retention and 
persistence while reducing 
equity gaps by strengthening 
procedures and expand 
opportunities for awarding 
Credit for Prior Learning (CPL)  

Document procedures and fee structure, develop 
CPL opportunities for BAS classes, explore 
additional CPL opportunities across all college 
courses  

Workforce Education Coordinator, 
BEdA, BAS Coordinator 

In Progress 

        

Improve student persistence & 
completion & enrollment while 
reducing equity gaps by 
launching a Bachelor of 
Applied Science in Applied 
Management (BAS-AM) degree  

Secure regulatory approvals, market degree, recruit 
students, develop courses, develop and implement 
student support model, teach first cohort, complete 
2023 NWCCU site visit, start second cohort, expand 
to off-campus locations  

Title V Grant Team, BAS Program 

Completed 



45 
 

Improving Student Success 
Major Activities  Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

    

Increase transfer rates while 
reducing equity gaps  

Establish working partnerships with our primary 
transfer schools (CWU, EWU, WSU) to develop four 
year advising maps for top transfer majors from 
BBCC, establish dual admissions, reduce redundant 
degree requirements, co-advise, etc.  
Develop second year student advising experience  

Advising Coordinator, Dean of Arts & 
Sciences, Workforce Education 
Coordinator, Advising Workgroup 

In Progress 

    

Improve student persistence, 
completion & post graduate 
success while reducing equity 
gaps through workforce 
program development &/or 
redesign  

Launch Agriculture Mechanics Degree 
Dean of WF Education, Ag 
Coordinator, Ag Mechanics 
Coordinator 

On Hold 

Revise Industrial Systems Technology electrical 
program to train students to a higher level  IST faculty In Progress 

Secure distance learning approval for Aviation 
Maintenance Technology degree  AMT faculty Completed 

Stay current with industry changes and update 
programs accordingly  Dean of WF Education, WF faculty In Progress 

 

  



46 
 

Employer of Choice 
Major Activity Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

People and Leader Development 

Annual training plans/calendar for leadership 
development.  

HR, Title V, and Leadership 
Development Work Group 

In process  

Review and update leader competencies  HR, Title V, and SGC In Process 

Supervisor Expectations & Accountability  E-Team and Cabinet In Process 

Review and update 360 feedback process  HR and SGC In Process 

Improve performance evaluation completion 
rates  E-Team and Cabinet 

Improved 
completion rates 
for classified staff 
evals, but not for 
Admin/Exempt 

      

Climate and Community 

Implement workplace norms  E-Team, Cabinet, SGC Planning 

Onboarding & Orientation  HR and Supervisors In process 
 

Conduct employee satisfaction survey  HR Completed 

Assess employee survey results and develop plan  E-Team, Cabinet, SGC In Process 

Develop diversity plan as required by OFM  HR, CEID, Cabinet Completed 

Negotiate 2021-2023 Faculty CBA  HR, Instruction, Faculty Association 
Completed 

Adopt Telework Guidelines as Administrative 
Procedure  E-Team, Cabinet, SGC Completed 

      
Improve Internal Communication  Develop BBCC decision-making framework  E-Team, Cabinet, SGC Planning 
      
Implement ctcLink for HR & 
Payroll Implement ctcLink for HR & Payroll HR/Payroll Completed 

    



47 
 

Employer of Choice 
Major Activity Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Improve overall campus climate 
through Position Alignment  

Position descriptions available on Portal  HR  Completed 

Position descriptions reviewed and updated 
annually by employee and supervisor  HR & supervisors 

Ongoing 

Communicate salary structures for employee 
groups  HR  In Process 

Transition part-time hourly jobs to new structure  HR & Supervisors Completed 

Communicate position review/allocation process  HR In Process 

Reduce Time to Fill rate for open positions  HR & Screening Committees Completed 

 
  



48 
 

Forward Looking Infrastructure 
Major Activities  Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Implement ctcLink Project  Meet State Board deadlines and have a successful 
implementation  Business Office, BBT completed 

      

Facility Upgrades 

Upgrades to Science Labs in 1200 building M&O completed 
Renovation of theater in Wallenstein  1100 building M&O completed 
Install new gym floor M&O completed 

WEC & AMT Building Completion M&O, VP for Finance & 
Administration  

completed 

    

Technology Upgrades 

Improve network infrastructure in across campus BBT, M&O completed 
Replacement of laptop/docking stations for all 
employee versus desktop hardware  BBT, M&O completed 

Deployment of software-Office 365, Teams; Upgrades 
to Sharepoint  BBT completed 

Technology Plan Update  
Facilities Master Planning 
committee, Academic Plan 
committee, M&O, BBT 

Continuous process 

    

Annual Budget Process Monitor changes in state allocation process that will 
impact funding 

VP for Finance & Administration, 
Business Office, Budget managers 
across campus, Budget Review 
Taskforce 

Continuous process 

    
Financial Statement Audit 
(Annual) 

Continue financial practices that maintain unqualified 
financial audits. 

VP for Finance & Administration, 
Business Office 

Continuous process 

    

Facilities Master Plan - update Facilities Master Plan - update 
Facilities Master Planning 
committee, Academic Plan 
committee, M&O 

Continuous process 

    



49 
 

Forward Looking Infrastructure 
Major Activities  Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Continuity of Operations Plans 
(across campus) Develop plans All departments In Process 

      

Develop Dashboards Identify dashboards to develop to support strategic 
plan & implementation strategies, develop dashboards IR & Title V staff 

 

 

  



50 
 

Enrollment Growth & 
Diversification 
Major Activities  

Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Bolster total enrollment by 
determining post-COVID 
instruction and student 
support strategies that meet 
the needs of day, evening, 
online, remote, place bound, 
on-campus, off-campus 
students and improve & 
sustain virtual student 
support services accordingly  

Utilize technologies such as live Chat, the 
website, & Signal Vine to improve 
communication with students  

Dean of Student Services, Director 
of Enrollment & Registrar, Starfish 
Coordinator, WES, Title V Grant 
Team, Public Information Office 

In Progress 

Refine and expand services offered in online and 
hybrid modalities, including the new student 
intake process  

Director of Activities, Library, Dean 
of Student Services, WES Director 

In Progress 

Provide students information about required 
technology, access to needed technology and 
information on how to use technology tools  

Library Director, eLearning 
Coordinator, Instructional Designer 

Completed 

        

Increase state-funded and 
dual enrollment by 
expanding off 
campus instructional options 
with a focus on Othello, 
Quincy, and Mattawa  

Establish partnerships with key collaborators in 
target communities, identify programs to deliver 
and delivery strategy, provide needed services 
using virtual and hybrid modalities, identify 
facility and staffing needs, pilot operations in key 
locations, develop focused outreach & marketing 
strategy for specific communities  

VP of Learning & Student Success, 
BEdA, Outreach & Recruitment, 
Title V Grant Team 

In Progress 

        

Expand state-funded 
enrollment with student 
programs that will attract 
state-funded students  

Grow wrestling programs and recruit full rosters 
for all athletic teams  

Athletic Director 

In Progress 
 

Explore launching an eSports program and/or 
track & cross country  

eSports on hold 

Launch Agriculture Mechanics degree   Dean of Workforce Education On hold 

Investigate additional academic programs and 
activities that will attract state-funded students  

Dean of Workforce Education, Dean 
of Arts & Science, IR 

In Progress 

        
Expand total enrollment by 
strengthening pipelines into 
college  

Expand number of students transitioning from 
Basic Education of Adults (BEdA) program into 
college level classes  

BEdA 
In Progress 



51 
 

Enrollment Growth & 
Diversification 
Major Activities  

Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Expand number of students transitioning from 
dual enrollment programs into college level 
classes  

High School Relations Workgroup 
In Progress 

Grow dual enrollment programs  Workforce Education Coordinator, 
BEdA, Student Services 

In Progress 

Grow enrollment in existing programs 

Dean of Workforce Education, Dean 
of Arts & Science, Director of 
Nursing, BEdA Director, Division 
Chairs 

In Progress 

Strengthen relationships with feeder high schools 
to improve transition of high school students to 
Big Bend   

High School Relations Workgroup, 
Outreach & Recruitment, 
Workforce Education Coordinator 

In Progress 

Create a sustainable international studies 
program  Director of JATP Planning 

    

Expand state-funded and dual 
enrollment by developing and 
implementing an Outreach & 
Communication Strategy and 
Create an Implementation 
Plan for recruiting students  

Identify key communities & demographics and 
focus outreach efforts  

Outreach & Recruitment, WES 
Director 

In Progress 

Identify employers with tuition reimbursement 
for employees  CBIS Director, WES Director Planning 

Develop outreach and marketing strategies for 
specific communities  

BEdA Director, WES Director, 
Outreach & Recruitment, BEdA 
Director, Public Information Office 

In Progress 

Conduct family focused outreach for high school 
age students (focus to dual credit students) 

Outreach & Recruitment, WES 
Director, 

Planning 

Develop outreach and marketing strategies for 
working adults  

WES Director, BEdA Director, Public 
Information Office, BAS Coordinator 

In Progress 

Market student support resources and give 
examples of how they help students  Public Information Office, Library In Progress 



52 
 

Enrollment Growth & 
Diversification 
Major Activities  

Tasks to fulfilling activity  Assigned to Status 

Clarify admission process steps, due dates, 
technology needed and implement student 
communication plan  

Dean of Student Services, Director 
of Enrollment & Registrar, Title V 
Grant Team, Starfish Coordinator, 
WES Director 

In Progress 

Provide support and resources to allow a shorter 
turnaround time between when students ask a 
question and when they receive a response  

Dean of Student Services, Director 
of Enrollment & Registrar 

In Progress 

Use marketing messages that showcase what 
makes BBCC a 1st choice - BBCC cares about 
students and their success, has great programs 
and resources, is a great place to get started  

Public Information Office 

Completed 

 

 

  



53 
 

Acronyms 

AA&S - Accommodation & Accessibility Services 

AP - Administrative Process 

APA - American Psychological Association 

ARPA - American Rescue Plan Act 

ASB - Associated Student Body 

AtB - Around the Bend 

BAS-AM - Bachelor of Applied Science-Applied Management 

BBT - Big Bend Technology 

BEdA - Basic Education for Adults 

BP - Board Policy 

CAMP (grant) - College Assistance Migrant Program 

CCRI - Community College Research Initiatives 

CEID - Committee for Equity Inclusion and Diversity 

CiHS - College in the High School 

CPL - Credit for Prior Learning 

CTE - Career and Technical Education 

CTC - Community and Technical College 

CWU - Central Washington University 

DSHS - Department of Social and Health Services 

DEI - Diversity Equity and Inclusion 

DTA - Direct Transfer Agreement 

E3 - Expanding Equitable Education 

EOC - Educational Opportunity Center 

ERG - Employee Rescue Group 

ESL - English as a Second Language 

EV - Electric Vehicle 

EWU - Eastern Washington University 

FCS - Facility Condition Survey 



54 
 

FERPA - Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

GCU - Grand Canyon University 

HCM - Human Capital Management 

HEERF - Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund 

HEP (grant) - High School Equivalency Program 

HEART - Healthcare, Enrollment, Academic Retention, and Technology 

HEP - High School Equivalence Program 

HR - Human Resources 

HSI - Hispanic Serving Institution 

ICRC - Intercollege Relations Commission 

IR - Institutional Research 

IST - Industrial Systems Technology 

JATP - Japanese Agriculture Training Program 

LBGTQIA+ - people who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer (or questioning their 
gender), intersex, asexual, (or their allies) 

M&O - Maintenance & Operations 

MCO - Master Course Outline 

NCW Tech Alliance - North Central Washington Tech Alliance 

NEOGOV - Human Resources Software for Government and Public Sector 

NSE - New Student Enrollment 

NWCCU - Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities 

PDP - Post Secondary Data Portal 

SAO - State Auditor’s Office 

SBCTC - State Board for Community and Technical Colleges 

SGC - Shared Governance Council 

SNAP - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 

SSS - Student Support Services 

STEM - science, technology, engineering and math 

TANF - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 



55 
 

UB - Upward Bound 

USDE - United State Department of Education 

UW - University of Washington 

VOIP - Voice over Internet Protocol 

WES - Workforce Education Services 

WPEA - Washington Public Employees Association 

WVC - Wenatchee Valley College 

WWU - Western Washington University 



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #11 Board Policy 6101 Tuition & Fee Waivers (action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This is the second reading of BP 6101 Tuition & Fee Waivers. The associated AP is 
moving through the shared governance process. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
President Tweedy and VP Humpherys recommend the board approve the revised BP 
6101. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
“I move to approve the revisions to BP6101 Tuition & Fee Waivers as presented.” 

 
33



 

Revised w/Board Approval 8/99 Tuition and Fee Waivers 1 

Board Approved Revision 9/24/02, 06/06/24 BP6101 
 

BP6101 TUITION AND FEE WAIVERS  BP6101 

 

 In accordance with HB 1481, Community College District 18 may waive tuition and fees 

for: 

 

 - needy students 

 - qualified high school completion students 

 - full-time employees 

 - Washington residents sixty years of age or older 

 - veterans (1) 

 - children of law enforcement officers or firefighters (parent deceased or totally disabled) 

 - Washington scholars (2) 

 - Washington Award for Vocational Excellence recipients (3) 

 

 Additional tuition waiver: 

 

- non-resident tuition as per State Board for Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC) 

Resolution 99-05-10 and adopted by Board approval 8/3/99.  

 

 

In accordance with state law and regulations, Big Bend Community College offers 
tuition and fee waivers for specific categories of students. Washington State Statute and 
the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC) regulate the use of 
waivers, and determines which waivers colleges must offer to students, and which 
waivers are optional. (Relevant Resources:  State Board for Community & Technical 
Colleges Tuition Waivers and Residency Classification) 
 
Big Bend Community College implements the following Mandatory 
waivers per statute 

• Children and Spouse of Totally Disabled or POW/MIA or Deceased Eligible 

Veterans or National Guard Members 

• Children and Spouses of Deceased or Disabled Law Enforcement Officers or 

Firefighters 

• Wrongfully Convicted Person 
 
Big Bend Community College implements the following Mandatory waivers per 
SBCTC Policy 

• Adult Basic Education, English as a Second Language, and GED® Preparation 

• Apprenticeship 
 
Big Bend Community College may implement optional waivers authorized by law 

and per SBCTC policy, as may be determined by the College President. Optional 

Formatted: Body Text Indent

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Indent: Left:  0", First line:

 0"

Formatted: Body Text Indent

 
34

https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/child-spouse-partner-disabled-pow-deceased-waiver.aspx
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/child-spouse-partner-disabled-pow-deceased-waiver.aspx
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/child-spouse-deceased-disabled-law-enforcement-firefighter-waiver.aspx
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/child-spouse-deceased-disabled-law-enforcement-firefighter-waiver.aspx
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/wrongfully-convicted-person-waiver.aspx
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/abe-esl-ged-waiver.aspx
https://www.sbctc.edu/colleges-staff/programs-services/tuition-fees/tuition-waivers/apprenticeship-waiver.aspx


 

Revised w/Board Approval 8/99 Tuition and Fee Waivers 1 

Board Approved Revision 9/24/02, 06/06/24 BP6101 
 

waivers currently available to BBCC students will be addressed in Administrative 

Process 6101. 

6101.1 Ungraded Courses 

 

 Tuition, operating fees, and service and activities fees for courses defined as meeting the 

criteria for ungraded classes as established by the State Board for Community and 

Technical Colleges will be reduced or waived in accordance with the guidelines 

established by the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges and the adopted 

policies of Community College District 18. 

 

6101.2 Space Available Tuition and Fee Waiver for State Employees and Members of the 

Washington National Guard 

 

 Pursuant to authority granted by RCW 28B.15.558, the College shall waive tuition, 

operating, and service and activity fees for state employees as defined under subsection 

(2) and members of the Washington National Guard. 

 

 The waiver is predicated on a space available basis and is to be considered in conjunction 

with other space available reduced/waived tuition and fee programs provided by the State 

of Washington. 
(Reference AP6105 – Space Available Tuition and Fee Waivers) 

 
(1) See RCW 41.04.005 
(2) See RCW 28B.15.543 
(3) See RCW 28B.15.545 

 
 

 
35



 
 
 

BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #12: Employee Recognition (information/action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Ted Mata, Offset Printer Operator in Word Services, has been nominated and awarded 
the Presidential Award for Meritorious Service (see following). 
 
Former Director of Student Activities Kim Jackson has been nominated for Emeritus 
Status. 
 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 
 

 
36



To:  Dr. Sara Tweedy, President 
 
From:  Kim Garza, VP of Human Resources & Labor 
 
Date:  May 23, 2024 

 
Subject: Nominations for Presidential Award for Meritorious Service 
 
The purpose of this letter is to share with you the nomination for the 2024 Presidential 
Award for Meritorious Service.  Ted Mata meets the eligibility requirements outlined in AP 
1006, Presidential Award for Meritorious Service, “full-time, classified staff employee who 
has retired or will retire with a minimum of fifteen (15) years of full-time classified staff 
service.” 
 
AP 1006 states that completed nominations will be submitted to the Staff Training and 
Recognition (STAR) Committee for review with a written recommendation provided to the 
BBCC President.  The STAR Committee has not been active since July 2019 due to 
turnover and high workloads for the remaining committee members and is unable to 
review the nominations. 
 
Ted submitted notice he intends to retire on June 30, 2024.  Ted has had a distinguished 
career of service to the college, our students, and his colleagues.  Please consider 
bestowing the Presidential Award for Meritorious Service to Ted Mata.   
 
Ted Mata – 9/29/08 to 6/30/24 
 
During Ted’s time with BBCC he held the position of Offset Printer Operator.   
 
Comments from Ted’s peers include: 
 
“Ted has been amazing and works hard for the college as well as the community.  Ted 
has dropped what he was doing to rush an order.  Ted has always done with kindness 
and a smile.” 
 
“Ted has been resourceful in helping students print things they need and for 
departments, he helps us all get our paperwork needed in print.” 
 
“Word Services is a department comprised of only one person, Ted.  Despite this, Ted 
has done an exceptional job in managing everyone’s print requests.  He is always willing 

 
37

http://www.bigbend.edu/


to assist with last-minute printing for my meetings or events.  Ted never expresses 
frustration when I ask or a reprint due to new content added to a just printed document. 
Which was a rush job, to begin with.  Such high-quality customer service is rare and will 
be sorely missed.  Ted is one of the most outstanding employees Big Bend has and can 
never replace.” 
 
“Ted has served on several ASB hiring committees in the past and was wonderful!  He 
added great insights to the interview process and the students.  I could always count on 
him to be available and willing, which I can’t say was as easy with faculty at times.  Ted 
would spend hours perfecting the graduation programs for several years after Mike 
Andresen retired.  The other year, when a squirrel fried itself on the electrical wires 
across the road and shorted out the power to the 1700 building the morning of 
graduation, M & O rigged up a generator and Ted was working with one copier and the 
stress to get the programs all printed was unbelievable, yet he pulled it off.  He has 
always gone above and beyond with requests for ASB and teaching needs.  He would 
help create posters and give great advice, as well as proofread ASB posters for printing.  
He is the man when it comes to working on things at the last minute and coming through, 
no matter what!  This employee has always gone above and beyond with his 
responsibilities, as well as filling in for Dale and delivering mail when he had his own list 
of responsibilities to do those days.  I’ve never seen Ted lose his calm – he is truly a 
valuable employee and will be missed!! He would also attend ASB functions and support 
ASB throughout the year when I was part of ASB.  I know that he also participated in 
training activities, because we would discuss some of these trainings and what we would 
learn from them to apply to our positions.”   
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.  Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact me at 509-793-2010 or via email at kimg@bigbend.edu. 
 
 

 

 
38

http://www.bigbend.edu/
mailto:kimg@bigbend.edu


To:  Dr. Sara Tweedy, President 
 
From:  Kim Garza, VP of Human Resources & Labor 
 
Date:  May 23, 2023 

 
Subject: Nominations for Emeritus Status 
 
The purpose of this letter is to share with you the emeritus status nomination received for 
Kim Jackson.  Kim meets the eligibility requirements outlined in AP 1005, Emeritus 
Status, “full-time, administrative Officer who retires with a minimum of 10 years of full-
time service with the college and has held the position of President, Vice President, 
Associate Vice President, Dean, or Director.” 
 
Kim was employed by the college for 39 years.  She began working for Big Bend 
Community College (BBCC) in October 1984 as a part-time faculty member.  She was 
selected as the Director of Student Programs on January 24, 2001.  Kim continued to 
serve in that role until her retirement on August 25, 2023.   
 
The emeritus nomination for Kim Jackson stated, “she has been a great asset to the 
college, staff, students, and the community.  Kim has always been a team player by 
jumping in and helping out wherever it was needed.”  “Kim was the Director of Student 
Programs and took pride in her role at the college.  Kim always had her door open and 
was there for anyone who needed assistance or guidance.  She has done far more than I 
can list!” 
 
The nomination also stated that “Kim absolutely deserves this nomination and know how 
much she has meant to the college, staff, students, and the community.” 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the nomination, please feel free to contact me. 
 

   

 
39

http://www.bigbend.edu/


BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #13: Board Chair Rotation (for information/action) 
   
BACKGROUND: 
 
Per Policy Governance 1000.3 Governance Process 8 By Laws 
 
At the October regular meeting of the board each year the board shall elect, from its 
membership, a chair and vice-chair to serve for the ensuing twelve months. In addition 
the President of Big Bend Community College shall serve as secretary to the Board of 
Trustees as specified by state law. The secretary may, at his/her discretion, appoint the 
president's secretary or other appropriate college staff member to act as recording 
secretary for all regular and special meetings of the Board of Trustees. 

 
 The board chair, in addition to any duties imposed by rules and regulations of the State 

Board for Community and Technical Colleges, shall preside at each regular or special 
meeting of the board, sign all legal and official documents recording actions of the 
board, and review the agenda prepared for each meeting of the board.  The board chair 
shall, while presiding at official meetings, have full right of discussion and vote. 

 
 The vice-chair, in addition to any duties imposed by rules and regulations of the State 

Board for Community and Technical Colleges, shall act as chair of the board in the 
absence of the board chair. 

 
The trustees will discuss the board chair rotation. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Prepared by the President’s Office. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
None. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
“I move to approve the board chair rotation with Vice Chair Amy Parris moving in to the 
Chair position and Trustee Bethany Martinez moving into the Vice Chair position 
effective October 2024.” 

Trustee (term) 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 
Chandler (9/2026) C     
Franz (9/2025)      
Martinez (9/2027)  VC    
Parris (9/2028) VC C    
Richards (9/2024)      

 
40



 
 
 

BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
ITEM #14: 2023-24 Board Goals (information/action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The Trustees established the following goals for 2023-24 during their meeting on 
October 12. They may discuss actions steps to accomplish their goals.   
 
During the February 1 board meeting board members discussed forming 
committees of two trustees to focus on each board goal. Trustee Anna Franz 
chose to lead goal #1, Trustee Amy Parris chose to lead goal #2, and Trustee 
Juanita Richards chose to lead goal #3. Melinda sent an email inviting all 
trustees to join with the lead trustees to form a committee. 
 
During their last board meeting the trustees discussed gathering in their sub-
committees (no quorum) and developing plans for sharing during the board 
retreat. 
 
This is an on-going process. 
 

1. Develop a clear method of monitoring Big Bend Community College’s Ends 
Statements including the identification of indicators which measure the 
performance of the institution relative to the Ends. (Led by Anna Franz, member 
Gary Chandler) 
 
  

2. Advance equity, diversity, and inclusion by reviewing policies to ensure support 
of operational equity, diversity, and inclusion programs. (Led by Amy Parris, 
member Bethany Martinez) 

  
3. Establish an annual calendar of board study session topics to ensure 

professional development of Board members. (Led by Juanita Richards, 
member Gary Chandler) 

  
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 
 
 
 

 
41



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #15: Board Retreat Agenda (information/action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The trustees will discuss items for their retreat scheduled August 29, 2024. Their retreat 
agenda from August 31, 2023, is following for reference.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
President Tweedy requests that the Board provide topics for the retreat. 

 
42



Big Bend Community College Board of Trustees Retreat 
Wild Horse Wind Farm, Thursday, August 31, 2023, 9:00 a.m. 

 
1. Tenure Process Discussion 

• Discussion Participants 
o Tyler Wallace, Math Instructor and Faculty Association President 
o Kim Garza, VP of Human Resources & Labor 
o Bryce Humpherys, VP for Student Success & Learning 
o Linda Schoonmaker, VP of Finance and Administration 

• Documents to facilitate discussion 
o Mission, Vision, Guiding Principles & Ends (for reference) 
o Negotiated Agreement Excerpt on Tenure 
o Pierce College Tenure Revision PowerPoint (for reference) 

 
2. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Discussion 

• Discussion of Becoming HSI Book  
• Update from President Tweedy on the College’s DEI Efforts 
• Documents to facilitate discussion 

o Equitable Decision-Making Tool (for reference) 
o BP 1025 Statement on Equity, Inclusion, Diversity 
o Becoming Hispanic Serving Institutions Book Summary 

 
Lunch Break 
 
3. Discussion related to President’s Evaluation 

• Review President’s Evaluation Process 
o Documents to facilitate discussion 

 BP1000 BSL President’s Evaluation Process 
 President’s Evaluation Tool  
 President’s Completed Self Evaluation for 2022-2023 

 
• 2022-23 President’s Evaluation Statement 

o Documents to facilitate discussion 
 2023 Mission Fulfillment Report (for reference) 
 October 13, 2022, President’s Evaluation Statement (for reference) 

 
4. Board Evaluations  

• Evaluate Policy Governance BP1000 
o BP1000 (for reference) 
o Policy Governance and Board Evaluation Tool 

 Policy Governance and Board Evaluation Tool needs to be updated 
 

• 2022-23 Board Self Evaluation Statement 
o 2022-23 Board Goals (for reference) 
o Board Goal Updates 
o 2022-23 Board Agendas (for reference) 
o 2022-23 Motions (for reference) 
o October 13, 2022, Board Self Evaluation Statement (for reference) 

 
• 2023-24 Board Goals Statement 

o 2022-23 Board Goals 
o Draft 2023-24 Calendar (for reference) 

 
Additional Reference Information 
 September 20, 2022, Board Retreat Minutes 

 
 

 
43



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
ITEM #16: Assessment of Board Activity (for information) 
   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This agenda item provides an opportunity for the individual trustees to report on 
community contacts they have made and/or meetings they have attended since the 
previous board meeting.  This reporting process has been implemented as an 
assessment tool to give the board a way to measure definitively what is accomplished 
throughout the year for its next self-evaluation review. 
 
It is requested that the trustees submit their self-evaluation trustee activity report via 
email to Melinda. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 

 
44



Trustee Activity Report 

Activity 
(Briefly describe and check which End(s) your activity supported) E-

1
St

ud
en

t S
uc

ce
ss

E-
2

Co
m

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t

E-
3

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p

E-
4

D
iv

er
si

ty
, E

qu
ity

, &
In

cl
us

io
n

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5.

 
45

melindad
Underline



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #17: Big Bend in the Community/Board Meeting (information/action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Trustees may discuss holding a community open house or board meeting in 
communities in the service district. President Tweedy met with Board Chair Gary 
Chandler and college staff to discuss planning. The following information was discussed 
as a draft template for moving forward with specific event planning. 
 
  Mattawa 

(Prioritized)  
Othello  Quincy  Concerns   

Showcase  CDL, ECE, HEP, 
BEdA, Dual 
Enrollment  

Dual Enroll, CiHS, 
CTE Dual Credit  

Dual 
Enrollment 
(CTE)  
BEdA  

  
  
Timing- Road 
Show Fall  
 
Strategize 
invitations to 
Foundation 
board members  
  
  
  

  

Partners  K-12 SD, Port, City, 
ECE provider Inspire, 
(Want 
PUD/Wanapum 
tribe)  

Skillsource, CBHA, 
ACDC, Mayor, K-
12 SD  

SD  

Vision  Facility for CTE  Satellite Campus,  
College 
classes/programs  

  

Leg 
Priorities  

Capital Dollars/Dual 
Enrollment  

Dual Enrollment    

Legislators  Sen Torres  
Rep Chandler 
Rep Sandlin 

Sen Torres  
Rep Chandler 
Rep Sandlin 

Sen Warnick 
Rep Dent 
Rep Ibarra  

Trustee 
support  

Bethany  Amy    

Foundation 
members  

      

 
 
 
 
Prepared by the President’s Office. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 

 
46



BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #18: Next Regular Meeting (information/action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The regularly scheduled board meeting schedule: 

 
Thursday, August 29, 2024, (Retreat) 
Thursday, October 10, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 
Thursday, December 12, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 
 

The board needs to consider a special meeting in July to review and approve an 
emergency WAC regarding the student code of conduct. The AAGs are working with VP 
Kim Garza for the appropriate wording around Title IX changes. There may also be a 
Negotiated Agreement ready to approve in July. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Prepared by the President’s Office. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
President Tweedy requests that the Board consider and confirm a date for the 
upcoming Special Meeting and confirm the Retreat date. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
“I move to set a special meeting on ___________ and confirm the board retreat date of 
August 29, 2024.” 

 
47



 
 
 

BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Date: 6.06.24 
 
ITEM #19: Miscellaneous (information/action) 
   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
President Tweedy and the trustees may discuss other miscellaneous topics. 
 
This is also an opportunity for trustees to discuss agenda items for future meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by the President’s Office. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
None. 
 

 
48


	Mission Moments
	Public Comment.pdf
	Min .pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Accred Consent Agenda Item.pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Assess Consent Agenda Item
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	SS Consent
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Fin Admin LS
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	Ongoing Capital Projects: (updates in red)

	hr.pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Fdtn 6-6-24 Board of Trustee Meeting.pdf
	BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	Upcoming Events

	Faculty Updates
	ASB.pdf
	Pres Update
	BAS Behavioral Health Statement of Need.pdf
	BBCC 2024 Executive Summary
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	2024 Graduation Events.pdf
	Sabbatical Item
	Sabbatical review Dennis Knepp Winter 2024
	Op Budget item
	Budget docs
	Pages 5,6,7,8 #2.pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	FINAL BOT Packet page 1.pdf
	pg 2 BOT 24-25.pdf
	Page 3 & 4.pdf


	Mission Fulfillment Report Item
	President Thompson Tweedy and Vice Presidents Kim Garza, Bryce Humphreys, and Linda Schoonmaker will provide information around the Mission Fulfillment Report.

	BP 6101 item.pdf
	BP6101 red lined
	Employee Recognition item.pdf
	2024 Nomination Memo - President Meritorious Service Award.pdf
	2024 Nomination Memo - Emeritus Status (002)
	Board Matrix.pdf
	2023-24 Board Goals
	Board Retreat Agenda.pdf
	Retreat Agenda 8.31.23 Final.pdf
	Assess Brd rev.pdf
	Trustee Activity Report.pdf
	Big Bend in the Community-Board Meetings.pdf
	Next Mtg.pdf
	Misc.pdf
	Min .pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Accred Consent Agenda Item.pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Assess Consent Agenda Item.pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Fin Admin LS.pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	Ongoing Capital Projects: (updates in red)

	hr.pdf
	BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

	Fdtn 6-6-24 Board of Trustee Meeting.pdf
	BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	Upcoming Events

	Binder1.pdf
	cover.pdf
	cover inside.pdf
	Board Agenda Accessible (2).pdf

	5.09.24 Minutes.pdf
	9.  Board Goals
	10. Assessment of Board Activity

	Mission Fulfillment Report 2024.pdf
	Mission Fulfillment Summary 2024
	2024-25 Next Steps
	Mission Fulfillment Workbook
	Mission Fulfillment Scorecard
	Mission Fulfillment Scorecard Background
	Strategic Priorities
	Strategic Priority: Student Success; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned
	Strategic Priority: Employer of Choice; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned
	Strategic Priority: Forward Looking Infrastructure; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned
	Strategic Priority: Enrollment Growth & Diversification; Accomplishments, Next Steps, Lessons Learned
	Appendix A - Student Success Disaggregations
	Appendix B - State, Regional and National Comparison Data
	Appendix C - Major Activities, Tasks for Fulfilling Activities, Persons Responsible
	Acronyms


	Name: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Off
	Check Box30: Off
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32: Off
	Check Box33: Off
	Check Box34: Off
	Check Box35: Off
	Check Box36: Off
	Check Box37: Off


